2	
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	CITY OF DETROIT
10	BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS
11	BOPC VIRTUAL MEETINGJ
12	September 14, 2023 at 6:30 P.M.
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good evening, everyone. That 1 mic is really loud there. We are going to begin our 2 Detroit Board of Police Commissioner's meeting. It is 3 6:30. Noting that we don't have a quorum, but I do see 4 Commissioner Bell coming down the corridor. So we'll move 5 forward with our invocation. We're so grateful to be 6 7 joined by Commander Chaplin Jacqueline Timmons, who will be providing our invocation by Zoom. 8

9 CHAPLAIN TIMMONS: Good evening let's pray. Father, we just thank you for this day. We thank you for your 10 goodness, your love, and your kindness. We ask Heavenly 11 12 Father, that you would bless this Board of Police 13 Commissioners as they come together, father, to just 14 bless the citizens of Detroit. We thank you, father, that 15 this will be a meeting of agreement and unity, and we 16 just give you praise, honor, and glory that you will bring, bring things back to their remembrance, and you 17 will cause things to be completed. Give you glory, honor, 18 and praise in Jesus' name, amen. 19

20 COMMISSIONERS: Amen.

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: At this time, we will have our 22 introduction of commissioners by Secretary Shah.

23 MS. SHAH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

- 24 MS. SHAH: Chair QuanTez Pressley Here.
- 25 MS. SHAH: Vice-Chair Jim Holley Here.



MS. SHAH: Commissioner Linda Bernard -1 MS. SHAH: Commissioner Cedric Banks - Present. 2 MS. SHAH: Commissioner Willie Bell -3 MS. SHAH: Commissioner Willie Burton submitted an 4 excused absence. 5 MS. SHAH: Commissioner Lisa Carter -6 MS. SHAH: Commissioner Ricardo Moore also submitted 7 an excused absence. 8 MS. SHAH: Commissioner Annie Holt - Present At-9 10 Large. MS. SHAH: Commissioner Jesus Hernandez -11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. We do have a 12 13 quorum. Before we move to the approval of agenda, we are 14 so grateful to be in this beautiful edifice here at the 15 Kemeny Recreation Center. So we would like to have a 16 brief word of welcome by Valerie. Did I say that name 17 correctly? Okay. She can come forward. MS. VALERIE: Hello, my name's Valerie. I'm the 18 19 Recreation Center supervisor here at Kemeny. I'd just like to welcome everybody from joining us here tonight. 20 It's great to see a lot of familiar faces in the 21 22 audience. Please come and join us again. We're here 23 Monday through Saturday. We have a lot of programs. We

24 are also hosting our open house this evening. So if you
25 didn't get a chance to check out our flyers and program



on the way in, please stop and see the information on the
 way out. We'd love to have you come back.

3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you so very much. Again, 4 we are so grateful to be in this space. Your hospitality 5 and accommodation is greatly appreciated. With that, 6 we'll now move on to the approval of the September 14th, 7 2023 agenda. So the Chair entertains a motion.

8 CHAIRPERSON HOLLEY: So move.

9 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Second.

10 COMMISSIONER HOLT: It's been properly moved and 11 second. Is there any objection? Hearing no objection, the 12 agenda has been approved. Now we'll move on for the 13 approval of minutes for the meeting of September the

14 seventh, 2023. The Chair entertains a motion.

15 CHAIRPERSON HOLLEY: So move.

16 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Second.

17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Been properly moved and 18 second. Is there any objection? Hearing no objection 19 those minutes for September the seventh, 2023 has been 20 approved. There were three closed sessions last week and 21 so the Chair now entertains a motion for the approval of 22 the three closed session minutes for September the 23 seventh, 2023.

24 CHAIRPERSON HOLLEY: So move.

25 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Second.



CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and
 second.

3 MS. SHAH: Mr. Chair.

4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes.

5 MS. SHAH: If you can make those motions for each 6 once separately, please, for the record. You can identify 7 them as number one, number two, and number three. Thank 8 you.

9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So we'll begin with the 10 approval of the closed session minutes regarding CPL 11 Melanie Armstrong.

12 COMMISSIONER HOLT: So moved.

13 COMMISSIONER: There's.

14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and 15 second. Is there any objection? Hearing no objection 16 those minutes are approved. We'll now move on to the 17 approval of the closed minutes regarding police officer 18 Rakan Hamawi. Is there a motion?

19 CHAIRPERSON HOLLEY: So moved.

20 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Second.

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and 22 second. Is there any objection? Hearing no objection 23 those minutes have been approved. Lastly, we have the 24 approval of closed session minutes regarding Jujuan 25 Sandifer.



1 COMMISSIONER HOLT: So moved.

2 CHAIRPERSON HOLLEY: Second.

3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and 4 second. Is there any objection? Hearing no objection 5 those minutes have been approved. With that, we'll now 6 move on to the introduction of BOPC staff, Chief of 7 Police, elected official representatives and community 8 leaders by our secretary.

9 MS. SHAH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. For staff present 10 today, we have Chief Investigator Jerome Warfield, Ms. 11 Theresa Blossom, Ms. Jonya Underwood, Ms. Candace Hayes, 12 Mr. Robert Brown, and Mr. Drew Fries. We also have 13 present supervising investigator Ainsley Cromwell. Our 14 American Sign Language Interpreters are Ms. Yakata 15 Thompson and Ms. Wigart. On Zoom, we have DPD, HR 16 Director Katrina Patillo. Don Handyside is our court 17 reporter. Si and Jason from Media Services are providing 18 video. Sergeant Alan Quinn is providing audio. Sitting in for the Chief today, we have Deputy Chief Tiffany 19 20 Stewart. Elected officials and representatives present, 21 we have Ms. Marie Overall, State Representative Tyrone Carter's office, Ms. LaDon Davis City Council member Fred 22 Durhal III's office, and former commissioner William 23 24 Davis.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Again, as I say,



1 every week that I'm present, we do appreciate your participation in these meetings and particularly in the 2 evening. We know that you have numbers of things that you 3 can be doing with your time but we greatly appreciate you 4 being here to ensure the efficiency and effectiveness of 5 our work. With that, we'll now move on to the Board of 6 Police Commissioner's Officers Report where we have the 7 opportunity to lift some commendations for individuals 8 9 who are doing extraordinary work in our community and in police oversight. So with that I'll turn it over to 10 Commissioner Lisa Carter. 11

12 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So good evening, everyone, and thank you all for coming out to 13 14 the southwest Detroit, the part of the city that's most 15 southern to the city of Detroit. Often forgotten, 48217. 16 But we are a live and a vibrant community and at this time, I would like to honor one of our district's own, 17 precincts own Nicole Fisher. I've known Nicole for quite 18 a few years now. So this is a resolution honoring 19 Southwest Detroit leader, Nicole Fisher, for supporting 20 the Fourth Precinct and stronger community police 21 22 community relations.

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yeah, we want to see you.
 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Whereas Nicole Fisher is a
 proud born and raised third generation Southwest



1 Detroiter, and a graduate of Western International High School. Her mother instilled in her and her three 2 siblings, a strong spirit of civic responsibility, 3 leading Ms. Fisher to make a commitment early in life to 4 5 community service and advocacy. Whereas Ms. Fisher has 6 led or participated in organizations closely aligned with the mission of the Board of Police Commissioners, she is 7 a long, I'm sorry, longtime member of the Springdale 8 9 Woodmere Block Club and currently serves as secretary. She is an alumnus of the AmeriCorps Community Safety 10 Program at Wayne State University Center for Urban 11 12 Studies. She also graduated from both the FBI Citizens 13 Academy, and the Detroit Police Department Citizens 14 Academy. Whereas since 2013, Ms. Fisher has been a member 15 of the West Werner Civilian Patrol dedicated to alerting 16 the police to drug dealing, gang activity, human trafficking, and other crimes. 17

18 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Through her leadership, the Citizen Patrol played a vital role in 2016 in identifying 19 and bringing to justice to young men in the disappearance 20 and murder of Amanda Burton. In 2018, the group helped 21 lead the successful battle for a state ban on sales of 22 nitrous oxide devices to minors who were buying the 23 24 devices known as Whippets to get high on laughing gas. 25 With the recent merger of patrols, Ms. Fisher now serves



1 as president of the Southwest Hope Civilian Patrol. Whereas past and present, police commissioners have 2 worked with and known Ms. Fisher through her work in the 3 Southwest neighborhoods and with the Fourth Precinct, she 4 has been an active member of the Police Precinct Police 5 6 Community Relations Council and serves as board 7 secretary. Her support and contributions help ensure the success of National Night Out, Family Fund Day, and many 8 other outreach events vital to building trust between law 9 enforcement and all residents. 10

COMMISSIONER CARTER: Now, therefore, be it resolved 11 12 that the Detroit Board of Police Commissioners speaking 13 for the citizens of Detroit and the Detroit Police 14 Department, congratulates and salutes Ms. Nicole Fisher 15 for a contributions to the Fourth Precinct police 16 community relations, public safety, and the quality of life in Detroit through her community service and 17 leadership. We thank and congratulate you, Ms. Nicole 18 Fisher. Signed by the Detroit Board of Police 19 Commissions. Well, congratulations. 20

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: The chair entertains a motion 22 to adopt this resolution to our archives.

23 CHAIRPERSON HOLLEY: So move.

24 COMMISSIONER: Second.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Any objection?



Congratulations. Thank you so very much for your years of
 dedicated service.

3 COMMISSIONER CARTER: So this does not speak to the volume of work that Ms. Fisher has put into the Fourth 4 5 Precinct. She's gone door to door when it's fleeting and raining to build the community patrols. She's worked with 6 7 DPD, the community patrol officers to try to build or 8 bridge a community patrol in this area as well. So she's 9 done some phenomenal work, not to mention board up cleanups and all of that with the AmeriCorps program that 10 she's done. She's just a vital member of this community. 11 12 Thank you.

MS. FISHER: Hello. I'd just like to say how humbled I am to receive this award, because what I do isn't for something like this. It's for all of us to live and thrive in a vibrant community like Southwest is. I want to thank Ms. Lisa Carter. I love the Carters. But thank you all, and I accept this and I appreciate it.

19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Congratulations once again. We 20 thank you.

21 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Second, I'd like to offer this 22 certificate of appreciation to neighborhood. Now, all of 23 our neighborhood police officers do a phenomenal job. You 24 call them and they answer the call no matter what time of 25 day it is. In the evening, whenever it is, the Carters



1 rely on neighborhood Police Officer Garrett Taylor. Oh, I 2 do have all three. Okay. Thank you. Was this on your 3 table?

4 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I can go speak, but you're5 so articulate.

6 COMMISSIONER CARTER: No.

7 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: You do.

8 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Well, you also live in the-you 9 know this area. You're more than welcome to do the other 10 two.

11 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Okay. Alright, sorry to 12 interrupt.

COMMISSIONER CARTER: All right. But I'm going to do 13 14 Gary Taylor. So like I said, this certificate of 15 appreciation does not speak to the, like I said, the 16 calls answered, the quality of life issues that Corporal 17 Taylor has addressed in this community. Just wanted to 18 let you all know that we appreciate you, and this is just 19 a small token of appreciation. Thank you. So Corporal Taylor. Come up. You can come up too. We appreciate you. 20 21 Also have Rick. Did you want to say anything?

22 CORPORAL TAYLOR: Just want to say thank you to my 23 community. I feel like this is my community. They welcome 24 me in with open arms. Took a little bit to earn their 25 trust, but I feel like I have it now. So thank you all.



1 Appreciate it. I got it on silent.

COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: All right. So I guess I'm 2 stealing the mic from Commissioner Carter hearing. Again, 3 for the record, I'll say she's much more articulate than 4 I am. Look, I think Commissioner Carter did a great job 5 touching on just the diversity that exists in the 6 footprint of what the Fourth Precinct has responsibility 7 over. Commander Holderbaum is doing a phenomenal job. 8 9 Captain Carter, the entire team. Leadership does start at the top. That's where it lives. Oh, we have a new 10 captain. I still am a huge fan of Captain Carter, though. 11 12 Leadership does start at the top. But I'm a big believer 13 that the execution of that leadership happens and lives 14 in the field. So these two recognitions are for police 15 officers, Kai Rodriguez and Alex Rojas. Absolutely. 16 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I just think when you look at the Southwest community there is a diversity of need, 17 not just diversity of culture and vibrance and food and 18 culture. Obviously, that's there. There's a diversity of 19 need when it comes to quality of life and the Fourth 20 Precinct does a phenomenal job of addressing just the 21 complexity of issues that come up in our community. So 22

23 both of these officers on a variety of different cases
24 have chosen, I mean, they choose every single day to wear
25 this uniform and this badge, and they do it proudly. But



1 it's reflective in the work that they do. It's reflective 2 in how they show up, and it's reflective in the results 3 that they produce in and for our communities and being a 4 part of this community in particular. So thank you to 5 both of them.

6 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I look forward to hopefully 7 giving this to them in person, if it's okay with you, commander. But I know that they couldn't make it tonight, 8 but just very much appreciative of not just them. I think 9 these two have their name on it, but if Commissioner 10 Carter and I actually could, we would probably think the 11 12 entire Fourth Precinct for all the work that they do. So 13 this is for the entire department.

14 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Including the community

15 relations team.

16 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Excellent.

17 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Well, we are so grateful to 18 Commissioner Carter and to Commissioner Hernandez who led 19 this effort, and again, to express our gratitude and 20 appreciation to those who enhance the quality of life of 21 all of those who live in the city of Detroit. With that, 22 it should be stated. I mean, we heard his voice, but for 23 the record, Commissioner Hernandez has joined us. Now we 24 will move forward with our community impact report. So as 25



1 far as our community impact, there is a critical incident debrief that myself and our Board Secretary attended on 2 September the 12th 2023 regarding an officer involved 3 shooting that occurred on I75 in Werner on August 18th 4 2023. We were able to receive a presentation from Detroit 5 6 Board, I mean, excuse me, from the Detroit Police Department using visual aids of a PowerPoint 7 presentation, still shots, the audio of the dispatch call 8 only and the on scene video and audio of this incident. 9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: BOPC's understanding is based 10 on what was verbally communicated at that meeting by DPD 11 12 leadership with the supporting PowerPoint, still photos 13 and dispatch audio. What we heard was that the dispatch 14 was made aware of a white male in an apparent mental health crises. He was reported as in the street 15 16 interrupting traffic with the green shirt, dark pants, 17 and what appeared to be something under his shirt or jacket. A supervisor or sergeant patrolling the area 18 approaches the male in the patrol vehicle. The still 19 20 shots from the dash cam showed the following. They showed a man standing in front of the patrol vehicle at some 21 distance with a black jacket in hand. The male reaches 22 under or in the jacket and produces a handgun that can be 23 24 viewed in the still shot pointing directly in the direction of the vehicle, which DPD indicates the 25



1 supervisor is standing next to.

2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Per DPD, the supervisor told the male to put the gun down and he did not comply. The 3 supervisor shot at the male who then fell on the ground. 4 While lying on the ground, the man raised the handgun 5 again and can be viewed in the still shot, pointing in 6 the direction of the vehicle, which DPD indicates the 7 supervisor is again, standing next to. Per DPD, the 8 supervisor told the male to put the gun down and he did 9 not comply again which led the supervisor to shoot the 10 male again at which point he then releases the handgun. 11 12 The supervisor immediately renders aid followed by medics 13 who arrive on the scene. Medics transported the male to 14 the hospital where he was pronounced deceased. The 15 supervisor fired a total of seven rounds of the number of 16 shots that the first time and the second time is not yet 17 known.

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: An investigation is ongoing 18 but the number of rounds that struck the male is also 19 unknown as we are awaiting the medical examiner's report. 20 It should be noted that the male, although pointed the 21 gun at the vehicle where the supervisor was standing 22 23 twice he did not fire any shots. The supervisor was not 24 injured in this incident and per protocol Michigan State Police submitted a request for a warning to the Wayne 25



County Prosecutor's Office, and it is still currently 1 under review with the Wayne County Prosecutor's Office. A 2 Detroit Police Department preliminary administrative 3 review anticipates that no force or policy violations by 4 5 the officer. So our next steps, as the Board of Police can monitor for any citizen complaints filed in 6 relationship to this incident, to request an official 7 report from the Wayne County Prosecutor's Office 8 regarding the warrant decision on the officers, and 9 suspect one-to-one has been reached. 10

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: To share more information, 11 12 including visual aids with the public as Board of Police 13 Commissioners receive them. Also, we welcome any 14 questions from the public that we can follow up on this 15 incident as you are so led. So, no matter the 16 circumstance, the loss of a life is tragic. On behalf of the Board of Police Commissioners, we sincerely offer our 17 condolences to the family and the loved ones of the 18 deceased. But again, in our desire to be transparent and 19 to provide the community the information that we're 20 receiving from the Detroit Police Department, that is our 21 2.2 critical incident debrief. Next we'll have the Citizen's complaint and OCI update by Chief Investigator Warfield. 23 24 MR. WARFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and certainly to the honorable body, and certainly to this community. We 25



1 thank you for hosting us and having us here. What I would like to do is to give an overview of some process 2 improvements that we are undertaking at the office of the 3 Chief Investigator. OCI has partnered with the City of 4 5 Detroit Continuous Improvement Department to conduct an analysis on the citizen complaint investigative process. 6 Here's the high-level overview of the efforts that we 7 believe will bear out fruit. There is an immediate time 8 9 study that is in progress to determine a reasonable production rate for investigators given OCIs current 10 process and systems. This will inform the Board staff 11 12 leadership and the city how many investigators are 13 actually needed to handle the inventory volumes that 14 we're experiencing at OCI and that we have experienced in 15 the past, and the volumes that we anticipate on 16 experiencing in the future, and what production rate to hold investigators accountable to. 17

MR. WARFIELD: So this study is actually going to be 18 very pivotal to make sure that we are right sized in 19 every way at the office of the Chief investigator. 20 Secondly, there's an analysis of the Citizen complaints 21 investigative process that's going on to determine where 22 23 and how to gain efficiencies, improve the reporting, 24 adhere to record retention standards and et cetera. So 25 one of the outputs will be a recommendation of a new case



1 management system. We've actually seen a couple of presentations presented to us. In consultation, obviously 2 with the Board, once we get your feedback, we'll 3 hopefully move forward soon with the recommendation for a 4 5 case management system to bring all of our efforts 6 together. Also, want to update you on transferred cases 7 as we said a few weeks ago, we would do. We have transferred a case to enforced investigations. 8

9 MR. WARFIELD: That case closed in our shop on August the 30th of 2023. The allegation in that case is force. 10 11 Finally, I am making a passionate appeal. I want to first 12 of all, thank all of the commissioners who are able to 13 take our cases the CCRs and reports and read them. 14 However, it would be extremely helpful if we had more 15 commissioners who will avail themselves to read some of 16 the reports and sign off and to spread the work. We are 17 handing more cases, I'm sorry, our investigators are 18 producing more cases per week. Tonight, there are 26 19 cases that went out to you all, and we are ramping up that number. So the more people we can get to help us 20 sign off on those cases, read them, and then sign off on 21 22 them, it would be greatly appreciated. That's our report 23 tonight. Thank you.

24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Is there any 25 questions, comments, or feedback from my colleagues



1 regarding any of the items mentioned in our community

2 impact report?

3 COMMISSIONER CARTER: I do have a comment through the4 Chair.

5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Carter.

6 COMMISSIONER CARTER: I don't know. I used to get the 7 cases, so it stopped coming to me, but I don't mind 8 reviewing the cases. There are several commissioners that 9 don't mind reviewing the cases.

10 MR. WARFIELD: That is great news. Thank you,

11 Commissioner Carter.

12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yeah, my expectation is that 13 we all will be reading those cases. If there's anyone 14 having any objection to that, I'm open to conversation. 15 Commissioner Bell.

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: I do have one concern, well, 17 perhaps two. Can we get an idea of the workload for each investigator? Especially just have an idea who's working 18 and what activity they engage in. My other concern is 19 that OCI was not present for Lieutenant Sergeants on 20 21 Friday at one o'clock. Is there an explanation? My activities from 2014, we never missed an opportunity. 22 23 That was a great opportunity to speak and interact 24 because that was the sergeant Lieutenant who are the 25 foundation of the leadership that we spoke about earlier.



I was not have a PowerPoint, but I think I did excellent 1 job representing this Board, representing Commissioner 2 Bell, something that I started in 2014. This was not a 3 Board project. This was something that Commissioner Bell 4 5 initiated then we got OCI to join me, and especially the Chief Investigators. So I would like to have an 6 7 explanation why there was no forewarning or no show in terms of explanation what took place, what did not take 8 9 place.

MR. WARFIELD: Sure. Through the Chair. The Chief 10 Investigator myself, I was on vacation on Friday, and you 11 12 and I had talked before, I think last week's meeting 13 about it. I was unsure. I don't think the plans were 14 solidified as it relates to what OCI's role was supposed 15 to be that day. However, I will guarantee you this 16 Commissioner Bell that in the future we will make sure 17 that there is a representative at the Lieutenant and Sergeants meeting. So we will absolutely be there. 18

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: Board Secretary read it off last 20 week in terms of confirmation at the Board meeting. Am I 21 correct, Madam Secretary?

22 MS. SHAH: Yes, that's correct. I did mention that 23 that class was going on.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Right. I assume that we can sort 25 with OCI in terms of the Chief Investigator's not theirs



Page 21

1 designate person, which we can talk offline.

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yeah. Your passion around this 2 issue is duly noted, and we'll ensure that it doesn't 3 happen again. So we'll definitely circle back around and 4 5 ensure we get our processes together to ensure we have 6 presence at those meetings. He asked firstly about 7 ensuring that we have a sense on work each investigators are doing. I know we're currently researching that. So 8 9 we'll be expecting a work product in that regard. I'll let the record also show that we have been joined by 10 Commissioner Bernard. So good to see you. Thank you for 11 12 being here. Yes, Vice-Chair Holley.

13 CHAIRPERSON HOLLEY: Thank you. I'm sort of like the 14 Vice-Chairperson, obviously. I'm like the Chair's kind of 15 shotqun man. We need to know what commissioners are not 16 taking the work. We need to know that. I think the 17 Chairman need to know that. Then if some reason or another they're not doing it, then allow me to help you 18 with this because I'm retired. But I'm just saying to 19 you, we need to know who's not doing the work of the 20 commissioner. It'll be a good reason. But I do feel the 21 22 Chairman, I need to report to him what commissioners are 23 not doing the job expected of them in terms of these reports. Is that okay, Mr. Chairman? 24

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: That's perfect. Thank you. Any



1 further questions, comments, or feedback regarding the 2 Community Impact report?

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Mr. Chairman.

4

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes. Commissioner Bell COMMISSIONER BELL: At the last meeting, three 5 6 commission, including myself, raised concern about the 7 impact. I would hope that we can have-

8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: The community impact report. COMMISSIONER BELL: Have some form. That was 9 excellent, what you reported out from the Chief of Police 10 in terms of Board participation. But I think we need to 11 12 have that discussion in terms about other issues that we have raised about a month ago in terms of what took place 13 14 in profanity language, and even with not due process in terms of painting a certain picture, then even 15 commissioner had dialogue about once you open that box 16 17 up. I think we need to have some, and perhaps commissioner, Vice-Chair Holley and Commissioner Carter, 18 myself would be involved in that process because we are 19 past chairs of this Board here, so I think you should 20 utilize that experience. 21

2.2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yeah, no, I'm definitely open to your feedback in this regard, but also equally as 23 24 committed to ensuring that we're communicating to the 25 public the information that's necessary in order to have



conversation about police misconduct. I think that there 1 is a perfect compromise there if we open up the channel 2 for communication. So I'm definitely open. 3 4 COMMISSIONER BELL: I agree. Just what I stated, you did an excellent job at this meeting. But in the past, we 5 6 raised that concern just as a blast. 7 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. I remember having to apologize on behalf of the Board because of one of 8 9 those reports. So we'll do our best to ensure that we get to a point that meets the standard that we desire as well 10 as the residents deserve. Any other questions or 11 12 comments? 13 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Right here. Right here. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Banks. 14 15 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Through the Chair. Sorry. I know 16 last week they were talking about possibly getting rid of 17 the Community Impact report, but that's a very valuable report. That's something that we need to reach out and 18 19 extend to the community. So I'm all in favor of that 20 Community Impact report staying, because it's very, very 21 valuable and the community need to hear that, what takes 22 place with that Community Impact Report. 23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you for that. Commissioner Banks, I think we are all on the same page 24 25 now.



COMMISSIONER CARTER: Through the Chair. I'm sorry.
 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Carter.

3 COMMISSIONER CARTER: We're talking about getting rid 4 of it. I think that the issue for me was that according 5 to our bylaws, we have an agenda that we're supposed to 6 follow. So if it's going to be added, it should be, the 7 bylaws need to be changed to reflect the community impact 8 report.

9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. There is a larger discussion to be had. We did get some renderings from I 10 think our parliamentarian around the language that says a 11 12 normal agenda. So we have to do some definition about 13 what a normal agenda would mean. But again, there's some 14 benefit in the conversation. But I concur. I think we're 15 all on the same page that the channel to communicate to 16 the community the information we're receiving is absolutely necessary. I think what we're talking about is 17 18 what kind of guardrails we have to ensure that we all are 19 on the same page on what to expect when we hear the 20 Community impact report. Commissioner Bernard.

21 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The 22 Community impact report is really part of the director's 23 report, Board Secretary's report. She allows the Chief 24 Investigator, of course, to make that report because he's 25 the one that is receiving direct information from the



Page 25

1 community about the police department. It's totally appropriate that that information be provided to the 2 community and to the Board on an unfettered basis. If I 3 may, I'll give you an example. As you know, the Chief 4 5 generally comes and tells us when he's present. I'm not 6 sure what happened today. The most heinous things that have happened with respect to public safety or this 7 person shot this person and this police officer did a 8 9 great job when he apprehended Linda, let's say, doing X, Y, or Z. We are very supportive of that. 10

COMMISSIONER BERNARD: We are very supportive of the 11 12 Chief's honesty and of course, his viewpoint of that 13 situation. Those situations, as you and I both know, 14 always wind up in litigation. So that's not even a 15 factor. In the community impact report, when our Chief 16 Investigator and our Board Secretary State, this happened 17 to Sarah. This is what Sarah says the police did to her 18 on X, Y, Z, and this was wrong when they did such and such to her, or whatever they did to Sarah, John, or 19 James. Then there's this pushback that we shouldn't hear 20 the facts as related to us by a citizen. Those facts are 21 22 to me, as important as the facts stated by the Chief. So I suggest that we continue with our current process. 23 Let's hear from the community. Let's hear from the Chief 24 on an unfettered basis. 25



1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. I think we've 2 exhausted that conversation. So if there's no objection, 3 we can move forward. Now to the report from the Chief 4 Police and the Fourth Precinct.

DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: I am Deputy Chief Tiffany 5 Stewart, sitting there for Chief White today. Providing a 6 report on updated or injured officers for the city. We 7 currently have one police officer from the Ninth Precinct 8 who is disabled and recovering at home due to an on-duty 9 injury. Moving on to our crime data. We are continuing 10 reductions in our part 1 crime. We have a 10% reduction 11 12 in homicide. At this point, we have a 7% reduction in 13 non-fatal shootings, and we actually have a 29% reduction 14 in carjacking citywide for the City of Detroit. We do 15 have a 6% increase in robberies leading to a total part 1 16 violent crime of 0.01%. We additionally have like a 0.03% increase in aggravated assault as well. Our hope is to 17 sustain the reductions for the remaining year. That is 18 our goal. We are doing well so far, and our hope is just 19 to continue to do as well as we've done so far this year 20 in combating the crime. 21

DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: We are still participating in our drag racing and drifting details. Year to date we've had 22 felony arrests based on our drag racing and drifting detail, 5 misdemeanor arrests just related to



Page 27

1 that. We've recovered 9 weapons during those details. We've recovered 6 vehicles. We've investigated over 337 2 vehicles and issued over 157 traffic citations during the 3 drag racing and drifting details. We still are 4 5 participating, still in tune to them. We still get a lot of complaints via 911 or for the community, from the 6 various neighborhoods, or just from officers riding along 7 the street and just coming across them in their own 8 routine patrol. Mental health related calls for service. 9 So far we've had what, 81 calls for service in the last 10 seven days for either suicide in progress or a suicide 11 12 threat.

13 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: We've had 70 service calls for 14 mental nonviolent. We've had 31 service calls for mental 15 violent armed, and 96 for mental violent not armed. So 16 that's just the last seven days. Year to date, there have 17 been increases from our mental health related calls. From this year over last, we've had over 2000 mental 18 nonviolent calls. In 2023, we've had over 3000 suicide in 19 progress or threat calls. We've had over a thousand 20 mental violent armed calls. So it is clearly a mental 21 health crisis within the city of Detroit. We're doing all 22 that we can within Detroit Police Department to combat 23 24 those calls, to try and provide empathy, to try and provide our critical... 25



Page 28

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Crisis intervention. 1 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: Crisis intervention, thank 2 you. Training for officers, just so we can mitigate those 3 issues in a way that's healthy for the entire community. 4 Moving on to some of our significant incidents. We did 5 have shots fired at officers in the Eighth Precinct. On 6 7 Friday, September 8th at about 10:00 PM officers were on routine patrol in the area of St. Mary's in West seven 8 Mile. They observed a vehicle traveling at a high rate of 9 speed. The vehicle actually almost ran into the officers, 10 which made them provide a conducted traffic stop to 11 12 investigate the vehicle. There were three individuals inside of the vehicle. They removed all three of the 13 14 individuals, and at one point discovered a handgun in the 15 vehicle. One of those individuals fled into the 16 neighborhood of 18,000 blocks of St. Mary's. One officer pursued him on foot and they began to search the area. A 17 homeowner exited his home and fired one shot at the 18 19 officers.

20 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: They took cover and identified 21 themselves. They did not return fire. The suspect who 22 fired shots at the officer was arrested at the scene. 23 Officers did call K9 in and continued to look for the 24 initial suspect who fled, and they were successful in 25 finding him hiding on top of a garage in that direct



1 area. They also placed him under arrest. The detectives from the Eighth Precinct Detective unit along with the 2 Homicide Task Force Unit arrived to conduct an 3 investigation. Homicide Task Force Unit comes out when 4 shots are fired at officers or officers fired shots to 5 citizens and conducted an investigation. They submitted 6 7 warrants on both suspect to the Wayne County Prosecutor's office, and both were charged. The suspect who fired 8 9 shots at the officer was arraigned on a reckless use of firearms charge. Then the suspect who fled from the 10 officers from the traffic stop was arraigned on carrying 11 12 concealed weapon and resisting an obstructing police 13 officer charge.

14 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: Another incident, we had a 14-15 year-old shot Sunday, September 10th at about one o'clock 16 in the morning on a 13,000 block of Shields in the 11th Precinct. Officers arrived at the scene and observed the 17 victim being treated by medics. He had a gunshot wound to 18 his hip. He was in temporary serious condition when he 19 was conveyed to the Children's Hospital. Detectives from 20 the 11th Precinct arrived at the scene to investigate. 21 What they found occurred is that there was a large block 22 party slash wrap video shoot on the block. Witness stated 23 that a silver pickup truck may have been involved in a 24 25 shooting and they were seen driving away from the scene



Page 30

at a high rate of speed. This incident is still currently 1 under investigation. If anybody has any information to 2 provide, please contact Crime Stoppers at 1-800 Speak Up. 3 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: Same day Sunday, September 4 10th at 1:20 AM a 15-year-old was shot in the 10th 5 Precinct. In the 4,000 block of Petoskey officers 6 received a ShotSpotter alert that was later updated to a 7 shooting. They arrived at the scene and observed the 8 victim a 15-year-old male with a gunshot wound to his 9 right arm. He was conveyed to the hospital and also 10 pronounced in a temporary serious condition. The 10th 11 12 Precinct detectives responded to the scene and determined 13 that he was standing on the front porch of the location 14 on a gray Kia Fort, driving westbound on Elmhurst toward, 15 I say, go just down the street fired shots at him, 16 hitting him once in the arm. So this incident is also still under investigation. Again, if you have any 17 information regarding or related to this, please call 18 Crime Stoppers at 1-800 Speak Up. 19

20 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: Or you can also get in contact 21 with Detroit Rewards tv. That's also another avenue for 22 providing tips to assist us in solving some of these 23 crimes. A last significant incident was a quintuple 24 shooting with two fatal victims in the Sixth Precinct on 25 Sunday, September 10th. It was a busy day, Sunday,



September 10th. This was in the 8,000 block of Rosemont. 1 Officers arrived at the location and observed a victim 2 lying on the front yard, face down with multiple gunshot 3 wounds. Medics pronounced him deceased on the scene. A 4 second victim was found lying on his back in the backseat 5 of a silver Chevy with multiple gunshot wounds to his 6 7 torso. He was also pronounced deceased on the scene by medics. Another victim walked into the hospital and we 8 9 were able to determine that he was also a party to the scene. Then again, additional juveniles. We had two, a 10 14-year-old and a 17 year old also non fatally shot in 11 12 this incident. Both suffered multiple gunshot wounds and 13 were listed in critical condition.

DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: What did the detectives 14 15 determine happened? In summary, there was a dispute 16 between two families on the block on Rosemont Street. The 17 dispute was initially an argument that turned into a physical altercation. Witnesses stated that the suspect 18 shot the victims, and then the victim's family returned 19 20 fire. So then detectives were successful in identifying 21 suspects who fired shots and are preparing a warrant to the Wayne County Prosecutor's office. So, great work on 22 their behalf. But we are still looking for additional 23 information. If anybody has any video, if anybody was a 24 witnesses who fled the scene. There were a number of 25



Page 32

people outside during that scene as well. Again, Crime 1 Stoppers 1-800 Speak Up. So just a lot of juvenile shot 2 3 on one day. Two of these two were both out at one o'clock in the morning, just hanging out, doing a lot when they 4 probably should be at home, at school time, writing a 5 paper or reading a book. But that's just my opinion. 6 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: Moving on to some positive 7 stories. For the last week, we had the 9/11 Memorial 8 service at Campus Martius on September 11th. The event 9 honored and remember those lives lost 22 years ago on 10 September 11th. Local first responders and community 11 12 members gathered to remember those who sacrificed their 13 lives on 9/11. The event was MCD by WDIV's Demand. 14 Hernandez and Chief White, Commissioner Sims and Deputy 15 Mary Todd Battison all spoke at the event. We did also 16 later that evening on Monday, September 11, at our appointment and promotional ceremonies for the Detroit 17 Police Department at Wayne County Community College 18 district at the ceremony. Four people were appointed and 19 20 58 were promoted to the ranks of Lieutenant Sergeant and detective. They were very excited. Families were happy to 21 be able to experience this transition into a leadership 22 23 role into the Detroit Police Department.

24 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: So we certainly are proud of 25 them and happy for them. Those members who were appointed



Page 33

to the rank of Deputy Chief were Melissa Gardner, 1 Commander Aric Tosqui, Commander Dietrick Lever and 2 Captain Scott Hall. So though they had previously been 3 appointed, we did offer them an opportunity to walk into 4 5 the ceremony so that their parents can see them get this 6 recognition of appointment to a higher position. Let's see. Lastly, we had a coffee and cake for those who may 7 have come, or for Assistant Chief David LeValley on 8 9 Tuesday, December, September 12th for his retirement at Detroit Public Safety Headquarters. We had it in the 10 Skylar room. He had 28 years of service and he will take 11 12 a civilian position as Detroit Fire Department's Chief of 13 Staff in October. So his last day is September 29th. 14 Assistant Chief LeValley has been Assistant Chief since 15 2018, and he was a Deputy Chief on the police department 16 for five years prior to his appointment to his current 17 rank. So it was a very nice sized party. A lot of food, a lot of gifts. We wish him well and we are thankful for 18 his service to not only the police department, but the 19 city of Detroit. That's my report out. 20

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Before we bring up
the Fourth Precinct for their report, any questions or
comments for Deputy Chief Stewart? Vice-Chair Holley.
CHAIRPERSON HOLLEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Deputy
Chief, can you let the chief let the Chairman know that I



1 did a good job?

2 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: You did an awesome job,

3 Commissioner Holley.

4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: I trust that.

CHAIRPERSON HOLLEY: Also, if you would please. In 5 6 the incident there last week at the grocer, there was an incident this past week at the post office downtown on 7 Fort Street and a minimum situation, obviously. But I 8 9 stayed there for about maybe 35-40 minutes or so, just 10 observing what was going on. Say there was a good, I think it counted like 12 peace officers, about 5 cars 11 12 trying to handle the situation. Deescalate it. But my 13 concern is what happens when someone basically is in that 14 state where you can't let him go home. You can't let him 15 go because I mean, he was just erratic. So what is the 16 place where we take him?

DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: So typically speaking, we will 17 take them to one of the local crisis centers and usually 18 speaking, they will admit them and they remain on 19 premises for could be up to 72 hours. The doctors at 20 those facilities will provide the medication in hopes of 21 evening out their mental health at that point in time. 22 23 CHAIRPERSON HOLLEY: Then finally, Mr. Chairman there's a concern across this country where marijuana now 24 25 is legal of course, in the city of Detroit. But the



Page 35

1 concern that many of us are having is that that's not the same marijuana that Commissioner Bell had when he was on 2 the police deployed on the police force. So is there 3 anything that's going on in Detroit that seems where we 4 5 are finding death and things that basically where marijuana is now being docked up to where death is taking 6 place those kind of things. Are we seeing anything in 7 that area of what's going on in some cities? 8

9 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: So I can't speak intelligently 10 regarding that. I do know with regard to there have been 11 occasions where fentanyl has been placed in marijuana or 12 they would smoke it. But unfortunately I don't work major 13 violators, which is our local narcotic unit. So I can't 14 really speak intelligently about that.

15 CHAIRPERSON HOLLEY: Quickly, the I'll leave you 16 alone, Mr. Chairman. Do you think we ought to have some 17 type of report in terms of that kind of activity taking 18 place where people are dying from overdosing. I'm just concerned that we know it's legal, but we know also that 19 now people are stepping it up to where people are dying. 20 21 I just don't know what's going on. Do we have any statistics that tells what we doing in Detroit in regard 22 to those kind of deaths? How many people shot, how many 23 people died from shots, all that, but not from. 24 25 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: So no, we don't keep local



statistics on deaths related to marijuana. So marijuana 1 is legal. So those patrons who are getting marijuana 2 legally probably are going to a facility that sells the 3 marijuana. So I would not imagine that they are having 4 health concerns, if you will. The marijuana that would be 5 6 illegal is probably if there are such issues occurring, it probably will be occurring from illegal marijuana 7 sales. 8

CHAIRPERSON HOLLEY: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair. 9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yeah, Vice-Chair. That's a 10 reasonable conversation. I just don't know if DPD is the 11 12 right person to present on it. So we can have Secretary 13 Shah investigate. Maybe there's an organization that's 14 keeping their eye upon marijuana use in the city and 15 might be able to speak intelligently on that regard. Any 16 other questions?

17 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Just a real short comment.

18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Bernard.

19 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I want to congratulate you, 20 Deputy Chief and the Chief on the fact that we had the 21 promotion ceremony on 9/11. That is such a significant 22 day in the history of this country. If I was an officer 23 and I was being promoted the day that I would want to be 24 promoted, most would be on 9/11 which honors all first 25 responders, fire, police, everybody. That was a very



1 impactful decision on your part and I think it was impactful for the individuals that were there and 2 including obviously, I quess LeValley because he just 3 left the department and now he's gone over the fire. I 4 mean, even in the future, I think I would consider that 5 6 day, the day. Because that's the day that all first 7 responders are honored and that's the day I'd want to get my stuff. 8

9 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: Well, thank you. I concur. I10 thought it was absolutely amazing.

11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Commissioner Banks. 12 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Thank you, through the Chair. 13 Deputy Chief, blesses up on you and your household. Okay. 14 What's the protocol when you got a suspect and you got an 15 officer in a confrontation and that suspect gets hurt. Is 16 it a protocol that officer render aid to that suspect? 17 What's the protocol on that, Deputy Chief?

DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: Well, typically speaking law enforcement officers or any public safety officer, whether it is law enforcement, fire, EMS. If we come across as a first responder, we come across someone who's injured whether in contact with us or not we typically do render aid.

24 COMMISSIONER BANKS: So that's a standard protocol,25 or you just do.



DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: It should be a standard 1 protocol. Now, when you're talking about render aid, what are you speaking about specifically? Are you talking about getting down and doing mouth to mouth? COMMISSIONER BANKS: Whatever the suspect need to survive to live. DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: I'm sure the officer is going to do what they're knowledgeable to do. If the person requires mouth to mouth and the officer hasn't been trained on mouth to mouth, and I'm just speaking in general terms, I don't imagine that they would give mouth to mouth.

13 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Okay.

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

14 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: I'm sure that they would call 15 for EMS or somebody who could provide that.

16 COMMISSIONER BANKS: But with DPD, isn't there a 17 basic training where DPD officers take up CPR?

DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: I just spoke in general terms, 18 Commissioner Banks. They should, and I just gave that 19 just as an example. But again, if it's something that 20 they are not trained on doing, then they would call EMS 21 for further assistance. 2.2

COMMISSIONER BANKS: But they should though. 23

24 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: Depends on what it is. I, I 25 can't say that I, you'd have to speak to the injuries.



Page 38

1 There are a whole bunch of aspects to that. Alright.

2 There's a policy on it. We can pull it.

3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. Thank you. Any further 4 questions?

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Mr. Chair.

6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Bell.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: I just want to speak to my hour 8 and a half I spent with the sergeant lieutenant and they 9 were present and you was present and they were really concerned about this Board in terms of interaction. They 10 was not impressed. They told me that one-on-one and told 11 12 me that collectively, and I apologized to them for this 13 Board in terms of how we conduct our business. I hope if 14 we do future promotion, we'll have a better process of 15 dealing with that situation because we invite people to 16 our house, they should not be treated in that manner. Now, I just want to add one more comment that I was at 17 forefront of drug education for about 10 years out of 18 narcotics for the Black police officer movement. We went 19 from elementary to high school citywide for about 10 20 21 years.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: That's something that we 23 initiated and we got approval from Mayor Young and Chief 24 our. So that's something that we had an impact in terms 25 hopefully on young people educating. I used to have all



1 those facts, drug kick and everything. In fact, you remember my officer, Michael Lemon, okay. He came along 2 3 thereafter for the department after we started the 4 program. Some of you probably know him. One other 5 comment, if you just bear with me. There was a public 6 comment about I was engaging in criminality in terms of the towing such and such. That was followed up by a 7 certain commissioner indicating that I should be removed 8 9 from the towing. But you should know that it is private entity involving this. This is Nicholas Hood Medical 10 Center court, the late councilman and Reverend. You know 11 12 him real well over the years.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: This unit is by Crosman Children 14 Hospital. We have signed, posted, and we have an ongoing 15 interaction with the public because they want to park on 16 private property. For 20 years we have tried, but we have 17 no choice. There's big signs there but also towing is for police towing. They don't deal with private property. I 18 just want to make that clear. If there's an investigation 19 going on that commissioners called for, I would hope that 20 include him also, in terms of engaging this Board is 21 corrupted has been stated publicly in the media? So I 22 just want to clarify that point. I do not engage in that 23 type of criminality. It is private entity. I've been 24 25 involved over 20 years and this United Church of Christ.



Page 40

You know that church, you know them about. We are the
 only, what do you call it, non-profit, affordable housing
 in the city of Detroit that still left. That started in
 1967. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. For the questions
 for Deputy Chief, we'll now move on to the Fourth
 Precinct report.

8 COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: Good evening, Board, Deputy 9 Chief Stewart. Residents of the fourth precinct. I want 10 to say thank you very much for this opportunity to serve 11 in the Fourth Precinct.

12 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Your name.

13 COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: [Foreign language 00:55:34].

14 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I'm sorry, your name. I missed 15 it.

16 COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: I'm Commander Shelley

17 Holderbaum.

18 COMMISSIONER: Thank you.

19 COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: Tonight I have my partner with 20 me, Captain Tanya Leonard.

21 COMMISSIONER: Crisis Intervention.

22 COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: Yes. Crisis intervention team. 23 So yes, yes. Very excited to have her at the number four 24 with us and the members of the team I brought with me as 25 well. We'll be standing by after the meeting to assist



Page 42

1 with anything that the citizens would like us to address 2 with them. I'm going to read everybody our violent crime report for the Fourth Precinct, and then we're going to 3 move into property crimes. If I go too fast and there's 4 5 something you want to question me on, please let me know. But we did a comparison for this week, last week and the 6 7 previous week for homicides and we're at zero. From the 8 last 28 days compared to the previous 28 days, we had 1, 9 which put us up a hundred percent, yeah, for the one. COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: For the period comparing to 10 2022, we were even. Comparison of 2023, right now we have 11 nine homicides in the Fourth Precinct compared to last 12 13 year, 8, which is a 12% increase. Looking at criminal 14 sexual conduct, sex crimes, we had zero in the last 15 previous three weeks. From the last 28 days compared to 16 the previous 28, we went down from 1 to 5, which is an 17 80% decrease. In 2022 in that same period where an 83% decrease. In comparison from 2023 to 2022, we're 22 from 18 27. So a 19% decrease. Robberies. We this week had zero, 19 the previous week three and then the previous week 35 20 21 we're at 5. So we're at a 40% decrease.

22 COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: The last 28 days, we had 11 23 compared to the previous, which was 6, which put us up as 24 an increase at 83%. But we're going to contribute that 25 40% decrease for an arrest we had. For the period of 2022



Page 43

1 comparison, that would be seven we're 50% up. 2023 comparison to 2022 we're up 9%. Assaultive crimes are 2 3 aggravated assaults. This week we had zero, the previous 4 week, 8, and then the previous week prior to that 11. So 5 we're down 11%. 28 days comparison we're at 55 and we were 65. So we're 15% down. 2022, 68% decrease. From the 6 7 comparison of 2023, we're at 434 and this time last year we're at four 30, which is a 1% increase. 8

9 COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: I'm going to go to burglaries. 10 We've had zero this week, but the previous two weeks, we 11 had 4 and 4, which keeps us even. Last 28 days we had 20. 12 Then to comparison to 23, which gives us a 13% decrease 13 for 2022, where we had 15, which gives us an increase of 14 33%. Comparison for 2023 to 2022, we're at 143 to 155, 15 which is the 7% decrease. Larcenies as well as vehicle 16 thefts, we are down and even with the vehicle thefts. We 17 show decreases from previous 28 days on all of those crimes for 28% for the larceny, 34 for the motor vehicle 18 theft and 28 total all offenses down. The comparison from 19 the 2023 to 2022 burglaries were down 7%. We are up on 20 larcenies by 6%, motor vehicle theft by 2 in the total 21 22 fence 3% overall. I'm going to speak a little bit about our non-fatal shootings in the Fourth Precinct. 23

24 COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: On March 31st, 2023, we were 25 at 75% increase. We were at 237 compared to the 224. On



Page 44

1 June 30th, we had decreased that down to 13%. The comparison for 2023 we're at 17 in 2022 to 15. As of 2 3 August 31st, we were at 4% increase in non-fatal shootings. In 2023, 29, compared to the 22 of 28 today. 4 5 Well, as of the date pulled of September 12th, we had zero. We're at zero at 2023, 29 compared to 2022, 29. A 6 comparison of our homicides. On March 31st, we were at a 7 200% increase. 2023, we had 3 homicides compared to the 1 8 in 2022. June 30th, we had a 166% increase of homicides. 9 In 2023, we were 8 in 2022 at 3. As of August 31st, our 10 increases at 12%, where we've had 9 in 2023 and 8 in 11 12 2022. Strategy results. Our strategy has had an impact on 13 our non-fatal shootings that have been consistently 14 decreasing.

15 COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: Our homicides are starting to 16 sharply decrease in the last quarter. Robberies in the 17 last 28 days, we had shown a 83% increase, which is 11 compared to the 6. Robberies are up 8% compared to the 18 2023 of 97 when we had 89 and 2022. In the past three 19 weeks, our robberies have declined 40% and we're going to 20 contribute that to arrest, and we're hoping to be able to 21 tie that person into other arrests and be able to close 22 further cases. To date, Fourth Precinct has had 98 23 arrests for carrying and concealing weapons, gun charges. 24 25 We're targeting enforcement. We're working with building



Page 45

safety and engineering and environmental BC and licensing
 and blight. We're doing restore orders, tickets, and tows
 on a weekly basis. We have a partnership with the
 Michigan Department of Corrections, and we're doing MDOC
 checks.

COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: With custom notification and 6 ceasefire. We now have an embedded social worker at our 7 precinct, who I believe is here tonight. We also have a 8 victim's advocate who assists citizens with PPOs and 9 works with our office and chaplains on domestic violence 10 reduction program. Both our social worker and our victims 11 12 advocates speak Spanish and English. Yes, we're very 13 excited about that. Our NPOs are conducting afterschool 14 programs, which include gun safety. We give a class, if 15 you find it, what to do, conflict resolution, police 16 encounters, cyber bullying, cell phone usage, stranger 17 danger, and how to communicate and report trauma. Our upcoming events within the precinct. We have our monthly 18 community relations meeting every second Tuesday of the 19 month. We just had one this past Tuesday. 20

21 COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: We had an excellent show out. 22 Thank you. Our Southwest Church of God, we're going to 23 have a backpack giveaway Saturday, September 16th, senior 24 citizens movie night. Our Papa Davis senior citizens will 25 be coming over Thursday, September 21st. Our other two



1	facilities are being scheduled for movie night. We have
2	showers here. We're going to start our showers again at
3	the Kemeny Center every Tuesday from 12:00 PM to 2:00 PM
4	and our national faith in blue will be October 6th
5	through October the ninth. That completes our report for
6	the Fourth Precinct.
7	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Any questions or
8	comments relative to the fourth-
9	COMMISSIONER BANKS: Right here to your-
10	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Banks.
11	COMMISSIONER BANKS: To your left, Mr. Chair. Okay.
12	Through the Chair. Is it Commander?
13	COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: Yes, sir.
14	COMMISSIONER BANKS: Huh?
15	COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: Yes, sir.
16	COMMISSIONER BANKS: Commander.
17	COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: Yes, sir.
18	COMMISSIONER BANKS: You mentioned that you all have
19	a partnership with Michigan Correction. Right?
20	COMMISSIONER: Great. Minds alike.
21	COMMISSIONER BANKS: What's the partnership? What all
22	takes place in that relationship?
23	COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: We go out with them and we do
24	checks for people who are on probation and on parole to
25	make sure that they're in with compliance of what they're



Page 47

1 supposed to be doing.

2 COMMISSIONER BANKS: No, I hold up. I hold up. I'm
3 through Mr. Chair. I'm all set. Thanks.

4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Any further questions?5 Commissioner Hernandez.

6 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Through the Chair. I don't 7 have questions, unfortunately. Not today at least. you know this for me. Anytime that I have resident concerns 8 9 and I bring them to you, you're very proactive. I'm a very big fan and admirer of the work that you're doing at 10 11 Fourth Precinct. You're very proactive, even to the 12 degree that you call me before I even have to call you on 13 a lot of issues that come up. So I just can't thank you 14 enough for everything that you've been doing since you 15 joined the Fourth Precinct and have been leading it. I'm 16 just looking forward to everything else that's ahead of 17 us on this journey together. So thank you, thank everyone on the team, obviously. I neglected to thank Nava. I just 18 19 saw her floating around somewhere. She was here. I am so sorry that I didn't publicly thank you before because 20 you've been phenomenal as well and the work that you do 21 is so critical. So thanks to the entire team. 22

23 COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: Yes. Ms. Minnie and both the 24 both of them. When we have citizens who come in and can't 25 speak Spanish, they'll come up and we don't have a



Spanish speaking officer at that time in the precinct. 1 They'll come up and translate and help us out. They do a 2 wonderful job. I can't say enough about them and all the 3 officers. I will tell you this Board, as you know, I got 4 5 my dream job. I've always wanted to work at the Fourth Precinct and it took me 25 years to get there. So it's 6 funny. I have a permanent smile on my face that I just 7 can't wipe off. So thank you so much. Appreciate it. 8 9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Any further 10 questions? 11 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Chairman. 12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Bernard. One 13 second, commander. 14 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Commander. 15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: One second. We got one more 16 question. COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Commander. Just a comment. I'm 17 18 sitting here and I'm listening to your report and I said, are we in Detroit or is this Grosse Point? I just had to 19 figure it out because you've done such a great job and 20 all your crime statistics are solo. You are a phenomenal 21 22 woman. Thank you. In the words of Maya Angel, 23 congratulations.

24 COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: Thank you.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: I don't know if I like that



1 comment. This is Detroit.

2 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Yeah, they're sidekick.

3 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: All the women.

4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: This is Detroit city. We have 5 intelligent, articulate people in the city of Detroit as 6 well.

COMMANDER HOLDERBAUM: This is on all the precincts.
8 This is the only female dual here. So we take pride in
9 this.

10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Excellent. Thank you so very 11 much for those reports. Now we'll move on to what I say 12 is the most important part of the meeting that's hearing 13 from the community. So again, it is time for public 14 comment.

15 MR. BROWN: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair.

16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: If you haven't filled out a 17 public comment card, make sure you do that so that you're 18 able to speak.

19 COMMISSIONER: Give it to Mister.

20 MR. BROWN: Give it to me over there. As of right 21 now, Mr. Chair, we have four speakers with more to come. 22 So I'll call those couples that I have right now. Ms. 23 Bernice Smith, followed by Minister Eric Blount.

24 MS. SMITH: Good evening to my commissioner.

25 COMMISSIONERS: Good evening.



Page 50

1 MS. SMITH: I am so happy that we come to Carter Town. Seriously speaking this city should be very 2 3 thankful that we're here because did you hear the report that she gave? I couldn't believe it. Zero and a zero. 4 5 But you know what? I'm not surprised. This young lady here, she went to Western where my children went. She's 6 7 grown though. But I still re remember that face because I used to be the hall guard there in at Western. But what I 8 9 want to tell you, this is a wonderful area of the city. It really is. I had my bakery located on Fourth and 10 Waterman and all the kids used to come in there. When 11 12 they get off the bus, they come in there and get the 13 donuts and everything. I even taught them how to say good 14 morning when they come in that door.

MS. SMITH: But I just want to let you know, I feel 15 16 comfortable down here because It was in 83 to 87, so you 17 know how long ago there was. Young lady, you look 18 wonderful. You don't look the same student, but you look 19 wonderful. So I am telling you, I'm not surprised that the statistics that they have just given for Southwest 20 21 Detroit. They are very low in crime here. I don't know 22 what the reason is, but they all live together and they communicate together and they do a hell of a good job 23 down here. I can verify that during the time that I had 24 25 my business. I used to come down here to Brothers Bakery.



Do they still have it? I don't know if they're still in
 business. See they had the best pastry that you can ever
 buy. I used to deal with Hudson, but Hudson could not
 compare with brothers.

MS. SMITH: So I'm happy to be down here to see how 5 6 the people are getting along and they're doing the same thing that they were doing in the eighties. So good. 7 Congratulations to the Fourth Precinct, which was down 8 the street from me. So I didn't have no problem 9 whatsoever, even with the kids. So I will tell you again, 10 it's a pleasure to be down here in southwest Detroit. 11 12 Carter, keep up the good work. Don't buy too many houses 13 now. I mean, come on, let me have some of them. 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you so much. 15 MS. SMITH: Thank you so much.

MR. BROWN: Minister. Blount. Followed by Mr. Bluntwould be Mr. James Ford, followed by Mr. Ronald Foster.

18 MINISTER BLOUNT: Good evening, Board.

19 COMMISSIONERS: Good evening.

MINISTER BLOUNT: I'm Minister Eric Blount from Sacred Heart Catholic Church here in Detroit. I don't come with good news. I have grave concerns about the corruption that happens and the facts are very clear. Ver and over again other police departments show how it can and should be done, but the Detroit Police Department



Page 52

refuses to do it and this Board will not hold them 1 accountable and very rarely even offers up a single 2 voice. This week, four officers have to stand in front of 3 a federal judge on charges of federal crimes in the 4 murder of Tyree Nichols. He was murdered. The videos were 5 clear. Everyone knows it. It happened on January 7th. The 6 7 videos were released January 27th, the same month, same year, 20 days apart. But yet the killing of Porter Burks 8 9 here in Detroit happened in October of 2022. 11 months now have gone by and we still don't have the body-worn 10 camera footage for the killing of Porter Burks. 11

12 MINISTER BLOUNT: You can bring up any excuse you 13 want to, but none will hold water because other police 14 departments do it. I choose to believe that the vast 15 majority of police officers are honest, hardworking 16 people, but it is how we do not address the bad officers that makes this whole situation very dangerous. Again, 17 with this Board, your community impact report, the August 18 18th incident, still shots from the dash cam. Where are 19 the body-worn camera footage? Where's the dash cam 20 21 footage?

22 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Your time is up.

23 MINISTER BLOUNT: I knew it would be.

24 MR. BROWN: Mr. Ford.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: I'm sorry. There might have



been jarring to those who listen, but everyone has two
 minutes for a public comment.

3 MR. FORD: My good people. City council, mayor, police, police commissioners, Black, white, red, yellow, 4 5 green, whatever. To be great. You have to do things 6 that's great. You don't have to ask anybody for permission to make your city safe. You have to make your 7 8 city safe. You have to demand respect. When you go 9 through Ohio, they do not ask you do you want to slow down? You slow down and you going to slow down coming 10 back. City officials, you have to dream of making your 11 12 city great. You just don't come up with a great city. You 13 have to dream of making it safe. I propose and a whole 14 lot of other people propose that are not with me. That 15 you have a city ordinance that says if a police can prove 16 that you blatantly ran a red light and you did it, that's 17 manslaughter. Especially if you hurt somebody, you got to take care of some business. 18

MR. FORD: We want to make the city safe. If you blatantly run a red light, we want to take your license. We want to take your car and impound it. We want to make you pay a fine and we want to put you in jail. City leaders. What you got to do is put up some invisible signs all around your city on every interest into your city that says you are in Detroit. You're going to have



Page 53

to respect us. We're not asking for respect. You're going to give us some respect. Drive. You should have some signs to say drive safe and see our beautiful city. Drive

4 fast and reckless, you'll see our jails. Please adhere to 5 what I just told you. They don't ask you for respect in 6 Ohio. They make you respect. That's what we got to do in 7 this city. Put up some signs and demand some respect. God 8 bless everybody. Thank you.

9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

1

2

3

MR. BROWN: Mr. Foster. Followed by Mr. Foster will
be Ms. Theresa Landrum, followed by Mr. Wendell Amica.
MR. FOSTER: Good evening.

13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good evening.

14 MR. FOSTER: Brought a little piece of literature 15 with me. I'm just going to go over a few outlines here 16 that I think is essential moving forward. The literature comes from a Federal Commission and enact by Linda B. 17 Johnson, 1967. It goes through a lot of different 18 departments. I'm just going to share the particular 19 Department of Police functions. Our investigation of the 20 1967 Riot Cities established that virtually every major 21 episode of violence was foreshadowed by an accumulation 22 of unresolved grievances and by widespread 23 24 dissatisfaction among Negroes with the unwillingness or

25 inability of local government to respond.



Page 54

MR. FOSTER: Overcoming these conditions is essential 1 for community support of law enforcement and civil order. 2 The commission recommends that the local governments 3 develop neighborhood action task force, establish 4 5 comprehensive grievance response mechanism, bring the institutions local government, establish neighborhood 6 outlets for local, state, and federal administrative and 7 public service agency, expand opportunities for federal 8 residents to participate in a formation formulation of 9 public policy and implementation of programs. 10

MR. FOSTER: State and federal finance assistance for 11 12 mayors and city councils to support the research. State 13 cooperation, provide municipalities with the judicial 14 tools needed to deal with their problem. The abrasive 15 relationship between the police and the minority 16 communities have been a major and explosive source of 17 grievance, tension and disorder. The blame must be shared by the total society. The police are faced with demands 18 for increased protection and services in the ghetto. Yet 19 the aggressive patrol practices start necessary to meet 20 these demands themselves, create tension and hostility. 21 22 The result and grievances are being further aggravated by the lack of effective mechanisms for handling complaints 23 24 against the police.

25

MR. FOSTER: Special programs for veteran police



	07/14/2025 rage 50
1	community relations have been instituted. Review police
2	operations and the ghetto, provide more adequate police
3	protection to ghetto resident, establish fair and
4	effective mechanisms, developing policy guidelines to
5	assist officers, develop and use innovative program,
6	recruit more Negroes into the regular police force and
7	review promotion policies to ensure a fair promotion for
8	Negro officers.
9	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.
10	MR. FOSTER: Establish a community service officer
11	and on and on and on. Take a longer current report.
12	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you so very much.
13	MR. BROWN: Mr. Landrum.
14	COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman.
15	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes.
16	COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Now with your permission,
17	could our staff look at these recommendations and see
18	where DPD falls within them right now? I think we've got
19	a lot of them, but some of them I don't think we have.
20	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: That's reasonable.
21	COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Have permission. Thank you.
22	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.
23	COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thanks Mr. Chair.
24	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Go right ahead. Good evening.
25	MS. LANDRUM: Good evening. As mentioned, my name is



Page 57

1 Theresa Landrum. I'm a lifelong resident of Southwest Detroit, 48217. I would like to extend the thank you and 2 welcome here by extended by Commissioner Carter and Ms. 3 Valerie. We thank you because we know you can't be 4 5 everywhere all the time. So this is a welcome site 6 because many of our residents don't have the opportunity to visit a Police Board Commissioner's meeting. I would 7 just like to express some concerns for our community. I 8 9 appreciate Commander Shelley for her report, but I would 10 like to ask is there any way that in her report she can include the overdose deaths that have received police 11 12 calls? Just this morning we had an overdose on the corner 13 of Fort Street and Outer Drive. On the August the 10th on 14 the corner of Deacon and Gleeson, another overdose death. 15 MS. LANDRUM: Just a week and a half ago, another 16 overdose death behind the old Washington Barber shop or 17 in visitor in Annabel. We have seen an increase of overdose deaths in our community. We awake to wake out to 18 19 roll up our garbage bins to find dead being laying on the side of people houses. We know that they are not from the 20 21 community because this is a predominantly African 22 American community and the people that have been found deceased have been white. We have an influx of panhandler 23 and drug activity that constant on the corner of Otter 24 25 Drive and Fort Street at the old Happy's Pizza. Just



1 about a month ago, they broke into a home and habituated there and they ended up arguing and throwing a fire bomb 2 in the home, burning it up on Outer Drive. 3 MS. LANDRUM: As well as Commander Shelly and her 4 5 team have been very responsive. They had set up an encampment on the corner of Outer Drive in electric and 6 7 the Department of Neighborhoods and the police department came and removed it. So we thank the commander. We thank 8 9 Officer Taylor because we do call him daily and he does respond. So I just want to say in this report, could 10 there be a place for overdose deaths in the city? 11 12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. 13 MS. LANDRUM: Because I think that needs to be 14 reported. Thank you. 15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Deputy Chief

16 Stewart is there a current reporting on overdoses?

17 DEPUTY CHIEF STEWART: No, we can pull that

18 information. It used to be in our report for the mental 19 health calls. There was a category for overdose deaths. 20 But I believe we pulled it out. But we can certainly

21 provide that information. Thank you.

22 MR. AMIKA: Good evening everyone.

23 COMMISSIONERS: Good evening.

24 MR. AMIKA: My name is Wendell Amica. I am a resident 25 here in southwest Detroit. Actually, I moved from



1 Roseville Park here. I actually grew up in Ecorse, so I have a love for this area of the city. I know when we say 2 Southwest, we talk about the whole Southwest precinct 3 area. But my drive is to just inform you of what's going 4 5 on in southwest Detroit as Sister Theresa just made mention. I have a friend who anything I have informed her 6 about, she contacts the police and they do a great job. 7 But what I would like you to just consider, and I've 8 9 heard before that they wouldn't want that, but this part of Detroit is the only part of Detroit that's surrounded 10 by five cities. So we need to understand that. I'm close 11 12 with River Rouge and Ecorse but I live right here on 13 Annabelle and we are pretty much entrapped.

14 MR. AMIKA: I can tell you how everybody arrived here 15 came either 75 Bridge, Miller Bridge, Fort Street Bridge, 16 or Jefferson. That's the entrance to this area here. The 17 police station when it was built, it was over on Fort 18 Street, close away. But what I'm telling you, the 19 gunshots, the response. I did the walk for a mile with Chief White. Think he's doing a great job and the police 20 21 force. I was a Wayne County Sheriff Officer, myself. So I 22 understand that, to understand the support. I think what you have in this area, there's a lot of people who felt 23 24 like their backs have been turned away. What Theresa's 25 telling you now, Tyrone Carter did a great job clearing



Page 59

that area off. Right now, I was just passed there. They're building it right back by the Happy Pizza, right behind the church over here. What I'm just concerned about? I think I have what it's take to protect my home. But we have several churches out here. We have people out here are mostly elder. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you, sir. MR. AMIKA: In their nineties. But I mean, far as the police, I think they do a good job. But we need to consider a mini station. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

12 MR. AMIKA: As any way possible.

13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

14 MR. BROWN: Mr. Chair, your next set of speaker would 15 be Ms. Genia Boynton, followed by Ms. Ann Byrne.

16 MS. BOYNTON: Hello.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Hello.

18 COMMISSIONER: Hi there.

19 MS. BOYNTON: So I live on Rosedale and I've been

20 here for 54 years, but I love my street. Love my street.

21 But we're getting these boarding houses now with

22 different people living in the homes. I don't know, is

23 there a noise ordinance?

24 COMMISSIONER: There's a noise.

25 MS. BOYNTON: They're not licensed. No. No. Yeah,



1 they're horrible. I'm down for boarding houses because people need somewhere to live. But it is about respecting 2 the neighborhood and keeping the noise. One of them play 3 the drums on the porch. Is there a noise ordinance? Can 4 5 somebody. 6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: There is. 7 MS. BOYNTON: Is there is? CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: There is. 8 9 MS. BOYNTON: Okay. What is it like? Is it a time or 10 something? COMMISSIONER: 10 o'clock. 11 12 MS. BOYNTON: 10 o'clock. COMMISSIONER: 10 o'clock at night. 13 14 MS. BOYNTON: Oh, I was giving them eight o'clock. 15 But yeah, so we have that. Now they're parking on, like 16 right there at their porch. Is that something that's supposed to happen? 17 COMMISSIONER: That's illegal. That's illegal to park 18 19 on the front. 20 MS. BOYNTON: That is horrible. That is horrible. 21 COMMISSIONER: It's illegal to park on your front. 22 MS. BOYNTON: It's illegal. COMMISSIONER: City council throughout the city of 23 24 Detroit. 25 MS. BOYNTON: Say it again. It's illegal or illegal.



1 Illegal. So I work every day, seven days a week. I got a 2 ticket for parking. I have a Jeep. So the little ramp was like a little bit over the sidewalk and I got a ticket. 3 They parked cross the sidewalk on the grass and they have 4 5 never gotten a ticket. Never. I'm not understanding that. 6 I work every day. They don't work no days. So it's just 7 like they're tearing down our neighborhood. The drugs are in the house. It's loud all the time. So I just don't 8 9 know. I don't know what to do. I mean, like, if I say something, I don't want anybody retaliating against me 10 11 because it's just me. I don't want to take measures in my 12 own hands.

13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. You're in the right 14 place for that. I mean, we can make sure that the 15 officers can get that information to ensure that those 16 things are followed up on and that your identity is kept 17 protected. Yes. Commissioner Bernard.

18 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Ask the commander to give that 19 area what's called special attention, where the officers 20 are patrolling much more regularly and they will ticket 21 every car that is on the lawn of a house. That is just so 22 outrageous. So do that and then let us know what happens. 23 You can come to any of our meetings at 3:30 on a Thursday 24 that aren't community meetings. So feel free.

25 MR. BROWN: Ms. Brian.



#### Page 63

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Which means at three o'clock.
 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Oh, Thursday. I'm sorry. What
 I'm saying. Right. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MS. BRYNE: Good evening and thank you for your time.
COMMISSIONERS: Good evening.

6 MS. BRYNE: My name is Anne Byrne. I'm a lifelong Detroit resident and I live in this precinct. I'm so 7 grateful that I do because the culture here of police 8 community relations is completely different than the 9 centralized culture of police community relations. We get 10 11 along, we communicate, we work together to find 12 solutions. But I've been a radio patroller since 1976 and 13 that program was founded the end of 1968, the beginning 14 of 1969. So it is older than most of you. Here's the 15 thing. We've been coming up with solutions for what was 16 happening downtown. We brought groups like Detroit 300 17 that I love and respect to the table.

MS. BRYNE: But we did not include the radio patrols. 18 There was no seat at the table. These are the people who 19 patrolled the streets. That's very important in a city 20 where we are understaffed in a police department and 21 22 sometimes our police only go from run to run. So if you 23 run a problem out of downtown, it's going to go to the neighborhoods and you need to have a contingency plan. If 24 25 you don't have those patrols at that table, you haven't



#### Page 64

1 developed it. I want you to bring the message back to the 2 entire department. The patrols are not to be handled. That's not police community relations. We're not to be 3 dragged out for a press conference and then never 4 5 listened to. So put it out there, share it and ingratiate 6 yourself to the wisdom of the people out here on the 7 street. 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. 9 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Through the Chair.

10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes. Commissioner Holt.

11 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Thank you. That same sentiment 12 was shared over in my area, which is Precinct Eight. In 13 our example, we don't know if Detroit 300 or New era is 14 patrolling our area. One of the citizen patrol people 15 made mention that, again, the Citizen Patrol people, and 16 you've given a historical validation as to why you should 17 have been included in the dialogue. Through the Chair. 18 Ms. Shah, is there some person who could come and speak as to why the citizen patrol community was not involved 19 in that whole discussion of ShotStoppers? 20

21 MS. SHAH: I can reach out and get more information 22 on that Commissioner.

23 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Okay. I believe the gentleman24 that presented through the Chair.

25 MS. SHAH: Last week.



COMMISSIONER HOLT: Right from the mayor's office 1 could help us get a dialogue going whereby citizen patrol 2 attitudes could be included in that whole discussion. 3 4 Thank you Chair. COMMISSIONER BERNARD: You want a short answer? 5 6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. No, I can't let you 7 do that. I can't let you do that. Mother Bernice, because then everybody's going to do that, but thank you. 8 MR. BROWN: Mr. Chair, your last speaker will be 9 former Commissioner William Davis. 10 11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Okay. 12 COMMISSIONER: Can't help yourself. MR. DAVIS: Hello? Can I be heard? 13 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, we can hear you. Go right 15 ahead. 16 MR. DAVIS: Okay. First off, I have three things I 17 want to bring up. One the Springdale Police. I get many reports about the Springdale Police stopping Detroiters 18 on the Detroit side writing tickets. That was going on a 19 number of years ago and we looked into it and it was 20 greatly reduced. Can someone there look into it and see 21 what could be done to help reduce the number of 22 Detroiters, especially Black Detroiters, getting tickets 23 24 in Detroit from the city of Springdale . Also next thing, the Community Impact report. I think that's one of the 25



best things that this Board of Police Commissions have done in the last 20 years. That's one of the few things that you all get high marks on. So I hope you all won't discontinue it. Also I'd like to bring up the fact that it is like an epidemic in this city of people running red lights.

MR. DAVIS: Some people, they'll go around cars that 7 stopped to run red lights. That's even doubly dangerous. 8 9 So I think that a special task force needs to be set up on positive ways that we can reduce that because people 10 are steady dying and steady dying. Also, since I have a 11 little bit more time, there's another concern I have 12 13 dealing with marijuana. Some of you all know, some of us 14 have adopted different schools and we go up to different 15 schools. There's a major problem that a lot of people 16 don't talk about. There are young children coming to 17 school that reek of marijuana. Obviously, their parents are smoking in the car, smoking near them, around them. 18 19 Perhaps you all could do, or someone can do some public service announcements telling parents they may be legally 20 smoking marijuana, but it is illegal for them to be 21 smoking it close to and near their children. That is a 22 23 problem. Thank you.

24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

25 MR. BROWN: Mr. Chair, that was your last speaker.



Page 67

1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Again, we take everyone's comments to heart and we'll do our best to 2 follow up on actionable items for those who had those to 3 offer. It is now 8:01 and it is my hope to allow this 4 5 meeting to be done at 8:30. So I'm going to ask for the 6 permission of my colleagues that we do that for the sake of the public. But we have just a few more items on the 7 agenda. We are so looking forward to hearing from the 8 community relations leader from the Fourth Precinct. So, 9 Ms. Ramirez is now on you. 10

11 MS. RAMIREZ: Thank you.

12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

MS. RAMIREZ: Former. We want to welcome our, again, 13 thank you so much, this honorable body, the Detroit Board 14 15 of Police Commissioner as well as our, through the Chair, 16 and our district commissioner, Commissioner Lisa Carter. I just want to do a real quick introduction. I have my 17 vice president Marie Overall. Nicole Fisher is our 18 secretary. Our recording secretary is Norma Galvan. So I 19 20 just wanted to make sure you knew who they are. I know you have our presentation in your packet and I just 21 wanted to briefly tell you who we are. 22

23 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman.

24 MS. RAMIREZ: My name is Eminia. I'm sorry.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: One second. Yes, commissioner



1 Bernard.

2 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Can you take a picture with 3 these ladies? This is important. I think it should be in 4 our newsletter.

5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, indeed. As soon as the 6 report is done, we'll do that.

7 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you Mr. Chair.

8 MS. RAMIREZ: Actually, my name is Eminia Ramirez, 9 known as Minia Ramirez. I am a lifelong resident of 10 Southwest Detroit. Born and raised. Went to public 11 school, went and got educated, came back and I still work 12 in Southwest Detroit.

13 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Board of Police Commission. MS. RAMIREZ: And a former Board of Police 14 15 Commissioner. Yes, ma'am. I also wanted to say that I am 16 the victim applicant that is housed inside the Fourth Precinct. So I'm the one that does personal protection 17 orders, liaison to the judicial process, as well as 18 connecting them to their detectives and for criminal 19 charges and any other community resource. So I am there. 20 21 I am bilingual and because of the error that we are entrusted in we definitely need even more bilingual 22 individuals to assist our community. With that as a 23 Fourth Precinct Community relations president we work 24 really hand in hand in hand with our Commander Holderbaum 25



1 as well as our captain.

2 MS. RAMIREZ: I remember Commander Holderbaum came and I remember telling her out of courtesy that I was 3 going to do a fundraiser for our backpack. She said, what 4 5 would you like for me to do? I said well, this is your precinct. She goes, no, she corrected me real fast. She 6 7 said, no, this is our precinct. So with that, I said, oh 8 yeah, we're going to get along real good. So also we are dealing with a lot residents. Solution has to do with 9 residents. We also have to work with the police 10 department and we work with quality of life issues. Just 11 to let you know, we have very good neighborhood police 12 13 officers. We have Officer Kellogg that wasn't mentioned. 14 Officer Taylor, Corporal Taylor, Alfonso Reiss is an 15 excellent NPO as well as LeBron and Police Officer 16 Rodriguez.

17 MS. RAMIREZ: So we acquired a few that we had to make sure that we name because they do work diligently 18 and work and Officer Gutierrez. Yes. Gutierrez who is the 19 Sergeant. Gutierrez who oversees these MPOs. So he 20 21 cracks, I mean he cracks that whip. I'm telling you. So I 22 just wanted to mention that. We deal with quality life issues. We deal with them with the MPOs because It's very 23 important for our MPOs to know who they serve. So they 24 25 are constantly out there. They not only deal with



physical, mental and spiritual, they're out there giving out dumping tickets, abandoned cars, city issues, neighborhood problems, which is constant. Project Green Light issues. They ticketed those who mishandle our parks. So they are out there. So in the community fourth precinct, we have a good relationship and it doesn't matter.

8 MS. RAMIREZ: We get into the agencies, the businesses, educational status, their work environment. 9 We deal with whatever we have to do with the residents. 10 We do a joint decision making process. We do social 11 12 belonging so that we feel we belong here. No matter who 13 you are I don't care what shade of color you are, we are 14 going to work together. That's what our heart here at 15 Fourth Precinct Community Relation council does and 16 speaks it out there. We have advocated. We also have 17 advocated for the ShotsStoppers. We have testified in city council. We are in agreement with this community 18 violence intervention tool. We believe in that. We also 19 advocated, and I came before the Board when it came to 20 the crisis intervention team that they were going to 21 remove just like that without telling us. We came before 22 you and did some letter writing and we did not want our 23 24 crisis intervention team to be removed.

25 MS. RAMIREZ: I said out loud, poor Theresa Blossoms,



Page 70

Page 71

1 I just read her ears. I said, what the hell, I'm sorry, what the hell is going on? So we did secure our officers. 2 They are here with us, Fourth Precinct, Corporal Dean, as 3 well as a police Officer Houser, even though we do share 4 5 Ms. Davenport, our mental health social worker with 6 second and fourth. But it's okay. I mean, but they did not remove them. So we were very proud and we thank the 7 Chief for that. You make sure Chief knows that. 8 9 Appreciate that. Everybody that helped us, we really appreciate it. We also have advocated for our gym park, a 10 very Diamond Park who I sit on at a Riverside Advisory 11 12 Council since 2015. We have seen it move forward. We have 13 fought for our Riverside Park to continue and we won. 14 MS. RAMIREZ: Our park is going to continue to be 15 finished and we hope to. We are so proud of it and so 16 proud of it that they have asked me as a community leader 17 to join the City General Services. So we are going to be presenting in Minneapolis, Minnesota. We're going to go 18 to the conference of Landscape Architecture and we're 19 going to present what we went to, especially as a 20 21 community, the pros and cons of it. The dislikes, the 22 negatives, and the positives. But we reached that end 23 product. So we are very proud. I'm very proud that we're 24 going to be able to present. Also, we want to let you 25 know that as Fourth Precinct community Relations, as a



victim advocate, we are constantly doing resource tables.
 We are doing outreach throughout Southwest Detroit both
 in English and in Spanish and dealing with quality life
 issues.

MS. RAMIREZ: We work closely with our NPOs when we 5 6 do our outreach. So we have done the Family Fun Day. We have gone out to National Night Out, Backpack event we 7 just had, Walk a Mile with our Chief White. We did Faith 8 9 and Blue and Blue Peace Walk. We're going to have another one this week, no, in October. We also have done resource 10 11 tables at the Elton Park Community Fund Day. This Faith 12 and Blue Peace Walk was done in conjunction with the new 13 Mount Hermon Church. The Elton Park Community Fund Day, 14 we were here in present. Community day with the Kingdom 15 of Apostolic Church. I can't really say that word, 16 Apostolic Church. Also, I am part of the Hispanic Police 17 Association, which we have presented three scholarships to the schools here in Fourth Precinct. That's just a 18 little bit. I just wanted to let you know what we're 19 doing and we're working diligently. If you could see who 20 21 we are, we are full-time employees. Ms. Nicole works for 22 who?.

23 UNNAMED SPEAKER: I'm the parent family community 24 engagement manager for Matrix Head Start. So I (Audio 25 distortion.)



1 MS. RAMIREZ: So we pass out our DV materials, our Fourth Precinct community relations. You have in your 2 packet all the speakers that we have presented in our 3 community meetings and all the way back to the Covid, 4 5 there was a moment there where we were sending out 6 through emails, Covid, and we couldn't meet. We thank Ms. Blossom for putting them in your packet just to see the 7 8 speakers that we had brought in to empower our residents, to learn from it. It's more like community issues. Things 9 that they can deal with and get information from these 10 11 speakers. They're very good speakers. Very hard. We're 12 very hard. We don't like people that tell us no. We don't 13 know that word.

14 MS. RAMIREZ: So we will go all the way to the top if 15 I have to, but they usually will say yes or they will not 16 be back. We are all women too. We also provide information on senior citizen services and returning 17 citizens. There's a lot of information that we write. I 18 19 want to say thank you. You have what we present. I have this very good saying that Ms. Marie Overall said it to 20 21 me one time and I said, wow, I never thought about it. 22 She said, we not only serve and protect, we teach as 23 well. So thank you so much.

24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Thank you. Your 25 monthly meetings are every second Tuesday at 6:00 PM at



Page 74

the Fourth Precinct building Atrium 4700 West Fort
 Street. You need to be on this Board. All this talking
 you're doing from the seat. Is there any questions or
 feedback from our fellow commissioners? Yes, Commissioner
 Bell.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: I'd like to ask Madam President. 7 I think I heard you say PPO Personal protection order. I 8 understand what it is. I used to be a part of that 9 process and still, but that's been a hot issue in this 10 state.

11 MS. RAMIREZ: Right.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: It is just a piece of paper. I 13 think we need to sort of look into that issue because we 14 had a high-profile deaths just recently. They wrote 15 extensive articles concerning that. We know. We issue 16 them out all the time. I need to hear your personal, not 17 perhaps not, but briefly.

18 MS. RAMIREZ: Okay.

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: But I think we need to look at it 20 in terms of the Board, in terms of PPO.

MS. RAMIREZ: I do go out and do outreach and explain what a personal protection order. There is various kinds of personal protection orders. There's non-domestic, which means there's no relationship, no nothing. It's more like neighbors or somebody stranger. Those are non-



Page 75

1 domestic. Then you have a personal protection order. Those are the ones you live with, have children with. So 2 there's those. Yes, it is a piece of paper. It's how you 3 use that piece of paper and how you explain it to them. 4 5 They come to my office. Now, I know you can do PPOs 6 online, but when they come to me, I provide information, 7 community resources, and I explain what a personal protection order. Once they do get it, I make sure they 8 9 are served either by the sheriff's department or we have agency that serves it. Then I teach them if they violate 10 11 this personal protection order, start logging what they 12 did, 1, 2, 3, come back and I can help you do show cost, which means you go back to the judge. 13 14 COMMISSIONER BELL: One more. 15 MS. RAMIREZ: Go ahead. 16 COMMISSIONER BELL: I think I heard that sometime you expect a person to serve that individual. 17

MS. RAMIREZ: I teach them how to serve it. I evenshow them how.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: That is an issue as you well know 21 perhaps. But we can have that discussion in the future. 22 Thank you.

23 MS. RAMIREZ: Okay.

24 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Through the Chair.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes. Commissioner Carter.



1 COMMISSIONER CARTER: I just wanted to say thank you 2 to the Fourth Precinct Community Relations Council. They 3 do a phenomenal job. It's not a paid position, but 4 they're always there and they do phenomenal work. So just 5 thank you for all that you do.

6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Indeed. Thank you. Thank you 7 for the amazing work you're doing in this community. I've 8 done several of these community meetings and it feels 9 like a family room in here. Like everybody just know each 10 other and love each other. So that's due to your great 11 work that you're doing. So keep it up. Any further 12 questions or comments?

13 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Through the Chair. I'd like to14 also commend the community relations committee.

15 Commissioner Carter and I once attended a forum whereby 16 you spoke on human trafficking. So that was a phenomenal 17 discussion as well.

18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright, thank you. With that,19 we'll now move on to our secretary's report.

MS. SHAH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Commissioners, your incoming correspondence are outlined in your agenda. I'll be referencing several documents in your packets. They are all located behind tab number six. This includes the first one that I'll mention, a retirement notification from Lieutenant Stanley. Lieutenant Stanley did arrive to



the Board office and delivered this notice to the board 1 asking that it be disseminated to all of you. It does 2 contain recommendations around improving oversight of 3 DPD. As far as critical incident debrief updates. Of 4 course today Chair Pressley read the incident on I75 and 5 Vernor and upcoming we are waiting for the Chief's office 6 to advise when the Board will be debriefed on the use of 7 force resulting in serious injury that occurred on 8 September 1st at 6:50 PM. Also in your package you will 9 see an update on outstanding DPD requests dated for 10 today. Emails were sent to DPD requesting update to all 11 12 requests that are due or overdue.

13 MS. SHAH: Commissioners that requested those reports and data were copied on those email requests. Also in 14 15 your packet, you will find a document titled DPD 16 litigation 09-14-2023. So lawsuits against DPD do appear on city council agendas starting this current fiscal year 17 2023/2024, BOPC staff will start to collect this 18 information from the city council agendas and compile 19 them on a monthly basis for your awareness. As you can 20 see on the document in your packets, 15 of these cases 21 were on city council's agenda requesting legal 22 representation and indemnification. The other six were on 23 the agenda to consider settlement amounts. As staff 24 continues to build out this monitoring process, we'll be 25



Page 78

able to provide the Board and the community with more
 details. As far as staffing updates.

3 MS. SHAH: As you are aware, commissioners, Senior investigator Elgin Murphy, continues to support 4 supervising investigator functions at OCI. That started 5 6 on the 12th of June. Per our HR consultant step code K appointed positions such as supervising investigator do 7 not qualify for out-of-class pay with the city. So Chief 8 9 Investigator and I just want to acknowledge Senior Investigator Murphy for supporting OCI in the absence of 10 one of the supervising investigators for this extended 11 12 time. The Board approved the conversion of office 13 assistant three to administrative assistant and salary 14 increase for Ms. Stephanie Phillips. That requisition was 15 submitted and that is a request to increase her salary 16 effect on August 17th.

MS. SHAH: It is at the last approval step with HR 17 recruiting. So we are waiting to hear back from them. As 18 far as open positions and staff administrative assistant 19 Jasmine Taylor, the Board salary offer was accepted. Her 20 background check is at the last step and her tentative 21 start date is the 25th of this month. There are three 22 open investigator positions. The requisition for 23 recruiting is at the last approval step in HR recruiting 24 25 and for the task BOPC analysts. That requisition is also



1 at the last approval step in HR recruiting. Updates 2 regarding contract services. So just want to provide the 3 Board for transparency and update regarding the Board's 4 transcription and court reporting contract. After several 5 meetings with procurement and procurements research, 6 there's now clarity around that contract and I'll just 7 give some points here.

8 MS. SHAH: Last professional services contract between BOPC and Hansen's is number 6002571 and it ran 9 from December of 2019 to December, 2021. Hansen's has 10 continued to provide the transcription services beyond 11 12 2021, under four non-standard purchase orders. That's how 13 their services have continued to be paid. All Hansen's 14 invoices have been paid through the end of the 20 22 20 15 23 fiscal year. So far, invoices for services rendered 16 from July, 2023 to present are unpaid. Staff did submit a requisition for a two year personal services contract for 17 those services to begin this current fiscal year. 18 Hansen's was the only bidder. However, the contract 19 cannot go to city council for approval until Hansen's 20 receives their clearances. Those were submitted to the 21 city in April. So procurement has escalated the clearance 22 request so the contract can move forward. In the 23 meantime, Hansen will continue to provide transcription 24 services that they're critical to the Board's meetings 25



and the invoices will be paid in batches via the non standard purchases process until the contract can be
 signed.

MS. SHAH: The last updates I'll provide are around 4 committees. The following matters have been emailed to 5 6 the respective committee Chairs for consideration to 7 schedule meetings. Committee chairs, we ask that you notify staff at least two full business days prior to 8 9 your desired meeting so that the staff can notify the public in compliance with the OMA. For the Budget 10 Committee chaired by Commissioner Carter, there are two 11 12 items. The fiscal year 2023-2024 budget proposal that is 13 being drafted by executive manager Mr. Fries and is 14 planned to present to the Board by the 28th of this 15 month. Then also the comp and class analysis and staff 16 recommendations for amendments to the attorney and legal 17 assistant positions. Under the Personnel and Training Committee. Chaired by commissioner and Vice-Chair Holley. 18 The class comp analysis and staff recommendations for 19 amendments to the attorney and legal assistant positions 20 also may fall under that committee for consideration as 21 22 it relates to personnel.

MS. SHAH: Then there are four applicant appeals that are waiting to be reviewed. Then also consideration for DPD's promotional request process and HR data and



1 information requests. For Citizen Complaints Committee chaired by Commissioner Banks the Citizen complaints 2 appeal SOP draft staff is still working on that on behalf 3 of that committee. As well as complaints against 4 investigative units. There are drafts to the standard 5 operating procedures for that. Escalated CCRs and case 6 management system and CCR data collection are topics that 7 can be taken up by that committee. Almost done. The 8 Policy Committee is chaired by Commissioner Bernard. This 9 committee, I would say by far has the most work to do. 10 There are 11 DPD policies in queue for the Board's 11 12 approval. Then in addition to that, the staff is working 13 with DPD to take a look at an audit of the current 14 policies that are out there to see what else is due for 15 review.

16 MS. SHAH: Then also this committee has consideration of updates to the BOPC bylaws and standard operating 17 procedures. The disciplinary DPD Administrative Request 18 Committee is chaired by Commissioner Burton and that 19 committee may consider the DPD administrative leave 20 without pay process and DPD disciplinary data and 21 information requests. Then finally, the Towing committee 22 Chaired by Commissioner Holt. There is a consideration to 23 24 take a look at a review of the hardship waiver data that comes into the Board's office, as well as a review of DPD 25



towing yards. Thank you for your patience. That concludes
 my report, Mr. Chair.

3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. I ask does any 4 commissions have any questions of feedbacks to put that 5 in communication and email for the sake of time. Our 6 announcements. Secretary Shah.

7 MS. SHAH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Board's next 8 meeting is Thursday, September 21st at 3:00 PM at Detroit 9 Public Safety Headquarters. The next community meeting is 10 Thursday, October 12th at 6:30 PM. The Seventh Precinct 11 is hosting at St. John Presbyterian Church at 1961 East 12 Lafayette in Detroit.

13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Is there any new14 business hearing? Hearing none.

15 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman.

16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, Commissioner Bernard.

17 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I just want to say thank you to the Board and also to the community. As you may have 18 noticed, I've been absent for about three or four weeks. 19 My aunt, who was actually my mother was critically ill. 20 21 She passed away last week. I've been in Chicago most of 22 that time. I came today before the Board meeting and 23 tomorrow, actually tomorrow morning I fly back to 24 Chicago. The funeral will be on Monday. I want to thank 25 everyone for doing what they do. All my colleagues

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100

actually for doing my job and their job. Just tell you, I
 appreciate you all. God bless you all.

3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: God bless you.

4 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Everyone in this room.

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Our condolences and heartfelt 5 6 prayers to you and your family in this most difficult 7 time. That's right. Any new business? Hearing no new business. We now have unfinished business that is held 8 9 over from last week's meeting. There were two motions to 10 postpone closed sessions. So the question before the Board is a motion to adopt the Chief's recommendation 11 12 that Officer Rakan Hamawi should be placed on 13 administrative leave without pay, but with medical 14 benefits. Is the Board ready for the question? COMMISSIONER BERNARD: You had the discussion 15 16 already, Mr. Chairman.

17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: This was again, a holdover 18 from last week. There was a desire for postponement. But 19 I think that the interest of the Board is to postpone 20 this again until next week's meeting.

21 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Mr. Chair, I got the motion.

22 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. Commissioner Banks.

23 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Alright, I move to postpone this24 motion to next week's meeting.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there a second?



1 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Second.

2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Properly moved and second. Are 3 we ready for the question? All those in favor, please 4 signify by saying aye.

5 COMMISSIONER: Aye.

6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those who opposed. That 7 motion passed to postpone this matter until next week's meeting. Then again during last week's meeting, there was 8 a motion to go into closed session to consider the 9 Chief's recommendation regarding officer Javier Smith 10 which failed. The closed session is now under unfinished 11 12 business today. But the question before the Board again 13 is to adopt the Chief's recommendation that Officer 14 Javier Smith be placed on administrative leave without 15 pay but with medical benefits. Are you ready for the 16 question?

17 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Yes.

18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: The Chair recognizes

19 Commissioner Banks.

20 COMMISSIONER BANKS: I move to postpone this motion 21 to next week's meeting.

22 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there a second?

23 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Second.

24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Properly moved and second. All 25 those in favor, please signify by saying aye.



1 COMMISSIONERS: Aye. 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those who oppose. That motion passes to have that closed session postponed to 3 next week's meeting. With that, we are now moving on to 4 adjournment. The Chair entertains a motion for 5 adjournment. 6 7 CHAIRPERSON HOLLEY: So move. 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there a second? 9 COMMISSIONER: Second. 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those in favor please by 11 saying aye. 12 COMMISSIONER: Aye. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed? Meeting is 13 14 adjourned. Let's take this picture. 15 16 17 (Meeting Adjourned at 8:25pm) 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25



1	
2	STATE OF MICHIGAN )
3	)
4	COUNTY OF WAYNE )
5	
6	RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE AND NOTARIZATION
7	
8	I, Donald Handyside, Court Recorder, do
9	hereby certify that on September 14, 2023 at 6:30
10	p.m., I did record the Detroit BOPC meeting, the
11	same being later reduced to typewriting and that the
12	foregoing is a true and accurate transcription of
13	said electronic recording taken at such time and
14	place.
15	I further certify that I am not related to
16	or employed by any party of this cause or their
17	respective counsel.
18	
19	wond
20	DONALD HANDYSIDE (CER 1464)
21	Notary Public
22	My Commission Expires: 5/6/2027
23	
24	
25	



0	166%
	16th
<b>0.01%</b> 26:16	<b>17</b> 3′
<b>0.03%</b> 26:16	17th
<b>00:55:34</b> 41:13	18,00
<b>09-14-2023</b> 77:16	18th
	19%
1	1961
<b>1</b> 26:11,15 42:8,16 44:8 75:12	1967
<b>1%</b> 43:8	1968
<b>1-800</b> 30:3,19 32:2	1969
<b>10</b> 39:18,20 61:11,12,13	1976
<b>10%</b> 26:11	1:20
<b>10:00</b> 28:7	<b>1st</b> 7
<b>10th</b> 29:15 30:5,11,25 31:1 57:13	
<b>11</b> 32:16 42:22 43:4 44:17 52:9 81:11	<b>2</b> 43:
<b>11%</b> 43:5	<b>20</b> 40 79:1
11th 29:16,21 32:9,11	200%
<b>12</b> 34:11	2000
<b>12%</b> 42:13 44:11	2013
<b>12:00</b> 46:3	2014
<b>12th</b> 14:3 33:9 44:5 78:6 82:10	2015
<b>13%</b> 43:12 44:1	2013
<b>13,000</b> 29:16	2010
<b>14-</b> 29:14	2010
14-year-old 31:11	2013
<b>143</b> 43:14	2021
14th 4:6	<b>2022</b> 13,1
<b>15</b> 43:13 44:2 77:21	52:9
<b>15%</b> 43:6	<b>2023</b>
15-year-old 30:5,9	18:1 14,2
<b>155</b> 43:14	79:1
<b>157</b> 27:3	2023-

2023/2024 77:18 **21st** 45:25 82:8 **22** 26:24 32:10 42:18 44:4 79:14 **224** 43:25 **23** 43:12 79:15 **237** 43:25 **25** 48:6 25th 78:22 **26** 18:18 **27** 42:19 27th 52:7 **28** 33:11 42:8,15,16,22 43:5, 11,17,19 44:4,17 **28%** 43:18 28th 80:14 **29** 44:4,6 **29%** 26:13 29th 33:13 **2:00** 46:3 3 **3** 44:8,10 75:12 **3%** 43:22 **30** 43:8 **300** 63:16 64:13 **3000** 27:19 30th 18:10 44:1,9 **31** 27:14 **31st** 43:24 44:3,7,10 **33%** 43:14 **337** 27:2 **34** 43:18 **35** 42:20

**35-40** 34:9

RENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO

313.567.8100

HAN

	DBOPC						
~				_	~	_	

	09/14/2023			
<b>3:00</b> 82:8	<b>75</b> 59:15			
<b>3:30</b> 62:23	<b>75%</b> 43:25			
4	7th 52:6			
	8			
<b>4</b> 43:11	<b>o</b>			
<b>4%</b> 44:3	<b>8</b> 42:13 43:4 44:10,11			
<b>4,000</b> 30:6	<b>8%</b> 44:18			
<b>40%</b> 42:21,25 44:20	<b>8,000</b> 31:1			
<b>434</b> 43:7	<b>80%</b> 42:17			
<b>4700</b> 74:1	<b>81</b> 27:10			
<b>48217</b> 7:15 57:2	<b>83</b> 50:16			
	<b>83%</b> 42:17,24 44:17			
5	<b>87</b> 50:16			
<b>5</b> 26:25 34:11 42:16,21	<b>89</b> 44:19			
<b>50%</b> 43:1	<b>8:01</b> 67:4			
<b>54</b> 60:20	8:25pm 85:17			
<b>55</b> 43:5	<b>8:30</b> 67:5			
<b>58</b> 32:20	8th 28:7			
6	9			
<b>6</b> 27:2 42:23 44:18	<b>9</b> 27:1 44:11			
<b>6%</b> 26:15 43:21	<b>9%</b> 43:2			
<b>6002571</b> 79:9	<b>9/11</b> 32:8,13 36:21,24			
<b>65</b> 43:6	<b>911</b> 27:6			
<b>68%</b> 43:6	<b>96</b> 27:15			
<b>6:00</b> 73:25	<b>97</b> 44:19			
<b>6:30</b> 2:4 82:10	<b>98</b> 44:23			
<b>6:50</b> 77:9				
<b>6th</b> 46:4	Α			
	abandoned 70:2			
7	abrasive 55:14			
<b>7%</b> 26:12 43:15,20	absence 3:5,8 78:10			
<b>70</b> 27:13	absent 82:19			
<b>72</b> 34:20	absolutely 12:15 20:18 24:17			

09/14/2023	
<b>'5</b> 59:15	
<b>'5%</b> 43:25	
<b>'th</b> 52:6	
8	
42:13 43:4 44:10,11	
<b>!%</b> 44:18	
<b>3,000</b> 31:1	
<b>60%</b> 42:17	
<b>1</b> 27:10	
<b>3</b> 50:16	
<b>3%</b> 42:17,24 44:17	
<b>50</b> :16	
<b>9</b> 44:19	
<b>::01</b> 67:4	
<b>::25pm</b> 85:17	
<b>::30</b> 67:5	
8th 28:7	
9	
27:1 44:11	
<b>%</b> 43:2	
<b>//11</b> 32:8,13 36:21,24	
<b>11</b> 27:6	
<b>6</b> 27:15	
<b>7</b> 44:19	
<b>8</b> 44:23	
Α	
bandoned 70:2	
brasive 55:14	
<b>Ibsence</b> 3:5,8 78:10	
beent 82.10	

Academy 8:13,14 accept 10:18 accepted 78:20 accommodation 4:5 accountable 17:17 52:2 accumulation 54:22 acknowledge 78:9 acquired 69:17 action 55:4 actionable 67:3 **active** 9:5 activities 19:22 activity 8:16 19:19 35:17 57:24 add 39:17 **added** 24:6 addition 81:12 additional 31:10,23 additionally 26:16 address 42:1 52:16 addressed 11:17 addressing 12:21 adequate 56:2 adhere 17:24 54:4 adjourned 85:14,17 adjournment 85:5,6 administrative 16:3 55:7 78:13,19 81:18,20 83:13 84:14 admirer 47:10 admit 34:19 adopt 9:22 83:11 84:13 adopted 66:14 advise 77:7

37:10



Advisory 71:11 advocacy 8:5 advocate 45:9 72:1 advocated 70:16,17,20 71:10 advocates 45:12 affordable 41:2 African 57:21 afternoon 49:15 afterschool 45:13 agencies 70:8 agency 55:8 75:10 agenda 3:13 4:7,12 24:5,12,13 67:8 76:21 77:22,24 agendas 77:17,19 aggravated 26:17 43:3 55:22 aggressive 55:20 agree 23:4 agreement 2:15 70:18 ahead 47:16 56:24 65:15 75:15 aid 15:12 37:16,23 38:2 aids 14:7 16:12 Ainsley 6:13 Alan 6:18 alert 30:7 alerting 8:15 **Alex** 12:15 **Alfonso** 69:14 aligned 8:6 alike 46:20 allegation 18:10 Alright 11:11 39:1 76:18 83:23 altercation 31:18 alumnus 8:10 Amanda 8:21

09/14/2023 amazing 37:10 76:7 amen 2:19,20 amendments 80:16,20 American 6:14 57:22 Americorps 8:10 10:10 Amica 54:11 58:24 **AMIKA** 58:22,24 59:14 60:8,12 amounts 77:24 analysis 17:6,21 80:15,19 analysts 78:25 Angel 48:22 **Ann** 60:15 **Annabel** 57:17 Annabelle 59:13 **Anne** 63:6 **Annie** 3:9 announcements 66:20 82:6 anticipate 17:15 anticipates 16:4 Anytime 47:8 apologize 23:8 apologized 39:12 **Apostolic** 72:15,16 apparent 14:14 appeal 18:11 81:3 appeals 80:23 appeared 14:17 applicant 68:16 80:23 appointed 32:19,25 33:4 78:7 appointment 32:17 33:6,16 appreciated 4:5 18:22 appreciation 10:22 11:15,19 13:21 appreciative 13:9

DBOPC

apprehended 25:9 approaches 14:19 approval 3:13 4:6,13,21 5:10, 17,24 39:23 78:17,24 79:1,20 81:12 approved 4:12,20 5:16,23 6:5 78:12 **April** 79:22 Architecture 71:19 archives 9:22 area 10:8 11:9 14:18 28:8,17 29:1 35:8 50:9 59:2,4,16,23 60:1 62:19 64:12,14 arguing 58:2 argument 31:17 **Aric** 33:2 arm 30:10,16 armed 27:15,21 arms 11:24 Armstrong 5:11 arraigned 29:9,11 arrest 29:1 42:25 44:21 arrested 28:22 arrests 26:24,25 44:22,24 arrive 15:13 76:25 arrived 29:3,17,21 30:8 31:2 59:14 articles 74:15 articulate 11:5 12:4 49:5 aspects 39:1 assault 26:17 Assaultive 43:2 assaults 43:3 assist 30:22 41:25 56:5 68:23 assistance 38:22 55:11 assistant 33:8,14 78:13,19

RENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100 DBOPC

80:17,20 assists 45:9 Association 72:17 assume 20:24 At- 3:9 Atrium 74:1 attended 14:2 76:15 attention 62:19 attitudes 65:3 attorney 80:16,20 audience 3:22 audio 6:18 14:8,9,13 72:24 audit 81:13 August 14:4 18:9 44:3,10 52:18 57:13 78:16 aunt 82:20 avail 18:15 avenue 30:21 awaiting 15:20 awake 57:18 award 10:14 aware 14:14 78:3 awareness 77:20 awesome 34:2 **aye** 84:4,5,25 85:1,11,12

## В

**back** 2:17 4:2 21:4 31:5 53:11 60:2 64:1 68:11 73:4,16 75:12,13 78:18 82:23

background 78:21

**backpack** 45:23 69:4 72:7

**backs** 59:24

backseat 31:5

bad 52:16

09/14/2023 badge 12:25 bakery 50:10,25 **ban** 8:22 Banks 3:2 23:13,14,15,24 37:11,12,24 38:5,13,16,19,23 46:9,10,11,14,16,18,21 47:2 81:2 83:21,22,23 84:17,19,20 **Barber** 57:16 based 14:10 26:24 basic 38:17 basically 34:13 35:5 basis 25:3,25 45:3 77:20 batches 80:1 Battison 32:15 **battle** 8:22 **BC** 45:1 bear 17:8 40:5 beautiful 3:14 54:3 began 28:17 begin 2:2 5:9 79:18 beginning 63:13 behalf 16:16 23:8 31:23 81:3 believer 12:12 Bell 2:5 3:3 19:15,16 20:3,4, 16,19,24 22:3,4,5,9 23:4 35:2 39:5,6,7,22 40:13 74:5,6,12, 19 75:14,16,20 belong 70:12 belonging 70:12 benefit 24:14 benefits 83:14 84:15 Bernard 3:1 21:11 24:20,21 25:11 36:17,18,19 41:12,14

**Bernard** 3:1 21:11 24:20,21 25:11 36:17,18,19 41:12,14 48:11,12,17 49:3 56:14,16,21, 23 62:17,18 63:2 65:5 67:23 68:1,2,7 81:9 82:15,16,17 83:4,15 84:23 Bernice 49:23 65:7 bidder 79:19 big 12:12 40:17 47:10 bilingual 68:21,22 **bins** 57:19 **bit** 11:24 43:22 62:3 66:12 72:19 black 14:22 39:19 53:4 65:23 blame 55:17 blast 23:6 **blatantly** 53:16,20 **bless** 2:12,14 54:8 83:2,3 blesses 37:13 blight 45:2 block 8:9 29:16,22,23 30:6 31:1,16 blocks 28:16 Blossom 6:11 73:7 Blossoms 70:25 Blount 49:23 51:16,18,20 52:12,23 **blue** 46:4 72:9,12 **Blunt** 51:16 board 2:3,12 7:6 8:7 9:6,12,19 10:9 14:2,6 16:5,12,17 17:11 18:3 20:2,4,19,20 22:11,20 23:8 24:23 25:3,16 39:10,13 40:21 41:8 48:4 51:18 52:1,18 57:7 66:1 67:14 68:13,14 70:20 74:2,20 77:1,7 78:1,12, 20 79:3 80:14 82:18,22 83:11,

Board's 79:3,25 81:11,25 82:7

boarding 60:21 61:1

body 16:25 67:14

14,19 84:12

body-worn 52:10,20

**bomb** 58:2





**book** 32:6 BOPC 6:6 77:18 78:25 79:9 81:17 BOPC's 14:10 born 7:25 68:10 **box** 22:16 Boynton 60:15,16,19,25 61:7, 9,12,14,20,22,25 Brian 62:25 bridge 10:8 59:15 briefly 67:22 74:17 bring 2:17 18:5 33:21 47:9 52:12 55:5 64:1 65:17 66:4 bringing 8:20 broke 58:1 brothers 50:25 51:4 brought 41:24 54:14 63:16 73:8 Brown 6:12 49:15,20 51:16 52:24 54:10 56:13 60:14 62:25 65:9 66:25 BRYNE 63:4,6,18 budget 80:10,12 build 10:6,7 77:25 building 9:9 44:25 60:2 74:1 **built** 59:17 bullying 45:16 bunch 39:1 burglaries 43:9,20 Burks 52:8,11 burning 58:3 Burton 3:4 8:21 81:19 **bus** 50:12 business 39:13 50:25 51:2 53:18 80:8 82:14 83:7,8 84:12 businesses 70:9

busy 30:25
buy 51:3,12
buying 8:23
bylaws 24:5,7 81:17
Byrne 60:15 63:6

# С

- cake 33:7
- **call** 10:24 14:8 28:23 30:18 38:14,21 41:2 47:12 49:22 58:9
- called 40:20 62:19
- **calls** 11:16 27:9,10,13,14,17, 19,20,21,24 57:12 58:19
- cam 14:20 52:19,20
- camera 52:11,20
- **Campus** 32:9
- Candace 6:11
- captain 12:9,11 33:3 41:20 69:1
- car 53:21 62:21 66:18
- card 49:17
- care 53:18 70:13
- carjacking 26:14
- carrying 29:11 44:24
- cars 34:11 66:7 70:2
- Carter 3:6 7:11,12,24 8:18 9:11 10:3,17,21 11:6,8,13 12:3,5,9,11 13:11,14,17,19 19:3,5,6,11 22:18 24:1,2,3 50:1 51:12 57:3 59:25 67:16 75:24,25 76:1,15 80:11
- Carter's 6:22
- Carters 10:17,25
- **case** 17:25 18:5,8,9,10 81:6
- **cases** 12:23 18:6,13,17,18,19, 21 19:7,8,9,13 44:23 77:21

category 58:19 Catholic 51:21 CCR 81:7 CCRS 18:13 81:6 ceasefire 45:7 Cedric 3:2 cell 45:16 Center 3:15,19 8:11 40:11 46:3 centers 34:18 centralized 63:10 ceremonies 32:17 ceremony 32:19 33:5 36:21 certificate 10:22 11:14 cetera 17:24 chair 2:23,24 4:7,14,21 5:3 6:9 7:12 9:21 16:24 19:4 20:10 23:15 24:1 36:9 37:12 39:5 46:11,12 47:3,6 49:15,21 56:23 60:14 64:9,17,24 65:4,9 66:25 67:15 68:7 75:24 76:13, 20 77:5 82:2,7 83:21 84:18 85:5 Chair's 21:14 chaired 80:11,18 81:2,9,19,23

- Chairman 21:17,22,24 22:3 24:21 33:24,25 34:23 35:16 41:4 48:11 56:14 63:3 67:23 82:15 83:16
- CHAIRPERSON 2:1,21 3:12 4:3,8,15,17,24 5:1,4,9,14,19, 21 6:2,3,25 7:23 9:21,23,25 10:19 13:18 14:10 15:2,18 16:11 18:24 19:5,12 21:2,13, 25 22:4,8,22 23:7,14,23 24:2, 9 26:1 28:1 33:21,24 34:4,5, 23 35:15 36:9,10,18 37:11 39:3,6 41:5 46:7,10 47:4 48:9, 12,15,25 49:4,10,16 51:14 52:22,25 54:9,13 56:9,12,15, 20,22,24 58:12,15 60:7,11,13, 17 61:6,8 62:13 63:1 64:8,10



65:6,11,14 66:24 67:1,12,25 68:5 73:24 75:25 76:6,18 82:3,13,16 83:3,5,17,22,25 84:2,6,18,22,24 85:2,7,8,10, 13 chairs 22:20 80:6.7 chance 3:25 changed 24:7 channel 23:2 24:15 CHAPLAIN 2:9 chaplains 45:10 Chaplin 2:7 charge 29:10,13 charged 29:8 charges 44:24 52:4 68:20 check 3:25 78:21 checks 45:5 46:24 **Chevy** 31:6 Chicago 82:21,24 chief 6:6,10,19 16:23 17:4,20 20:6,10,25 22:10 24:23 25:4, 15,22,24 26:3,5,6,22 27:13 28:2,20 29:14 30:4,20 31:14 32:7,14,24 33:1,8,12,14,15, 23,25 34:2,17 35:9,25 36:20 37:9,13,17,18 38:1,7,14,18,24 39:23 41:6.9 58:15.17 59:20 71:8 72:8 78:8 Chief's 25:12 77:6 83:11 84:10,13 children 40:13 50:6 66:16,22 75:2 Children's 29:20 **choice** 40:17 **choose** 12:24 52:14 chosen 12:24 **Christ** 40:25 church 40:25 41:1 45:22 51:21 60:3 72:13.15.16 82:11

09/14/2023 churches 60:5 circle 21:4 circumstance 16:16 citations 27:3 cities 35:8 54:21 59:11 citizen 8:19 16:6 17:6,21 25:21 64:14,15,19 65:2 73:17 81:1,2 **Citizen's** 16:22 citizens 2:14 8:12,13 9:13 29:6 42:1 45:9,24 47:24 73:18 **city** 6:22 7:14,15 13:22 17:4, 12 26:7,14 27:22 33:20 34:25 36:14 41:3 49:4,5 50:2,9 53:3, 7,8,11,12,15,19,22,24,25 54:3,7 55:12 58:11 59:2 61:23 63:20 65:24 66:5 70:2,18 71:17 77:17,19,22 78:8 79:20, 22 citywide 26:14 39:20 **civic** 8:3 civil 55:2 civilian 8:15 9:1 33:12 **clarify** 40:23 clarity 79:6 class 20:23 45:14 80:15,19 cleanups 10:10 clear 40:19 51:23 52:6 clearance 79:22 clearances 79:21 clearing 59:25 **close** 44:22 59:11,18 66:22 **closed** 4:20,22 5:10,17,24 18:9 83:10 84:9,11 85:3 closely 8:6 72:5 **Club** 8:9 code 78:6

DBOPC

colleagues 18:25 67:6 82:25 **collect** 77:18 collection 81:7 collectively 39:12 **College** 32:18 color 70:13 combat 27:23 combating 26:21 comfortable 50:16 commander 2:7 12:8 13:8 33:2 41:8,13,16,19,22 42:10, 22 43:9,24 44:15 45:6,21 46:12,13,15,16,17,23 47:23 48:13,14,17,24 49:7 57:9 58:4,8 62:18 68:25 69:2 commend 76:14 commendations 7:8 comment 19:3 36:17 39:17 40:5,6 48:17 49:1,14,17 53:2 comments 18:25 22:1 23:12 33:23 46:8 67:2 76:12 commission 22:6 54:17 55:3 68:13 **commissioner** 2:5 3:1,2,3,4,6, 7,9,11 4:9,10,16,25 5:12,13, 20 6:1,23 7:11,12,24 8:18 9:11,24 10:3,21 11:4,6,7,8,11, 13 12:2,3,5,16 13:6,10,14,16, 17,19,24 19:3,5,6,11,15,16 20:2,4,16,19,24 21:11,21 22:3,4,5,9,16,18 23:4,13,14, 15,24 24:1,2,3,20,21 25:11 32:14 34:3 35:2 36:17,18,19 37:11,12,24 38:5,13,16,19,23 39:5,6,7,22 40:8,13 41:12,14, 18,21 46:9,10,11,14,16,18,20, 21 47:2,5,6 48:11,12,14,17 49:2,3,19,24 56:14,16,21,23 57:3 60:18,24 61:11,13,18,21, 23 62:17,18 63:2 64:9,10,11, 22,23 65:1,5,10,12 67:15,16, 23,25 68:2,7,13,15 74:4,6,12,

**coffee** 33:7



19 75:14,16,20,24,25 76:1,13, 15 80:11,18 81:2,9,19,23 82:15,16,17 83:4,15,21,22,23 84:1,5,17,19,20,23 85:9,12

Commissioner's 2:3 7:7 57:7

- commissioners 2:13,20,22 8:7 9:2,12 16:13,17 18:12,15 19:8 21:15,22 40:20 49:25 51:19 53:4 58:23 63:5 74:4 76:20 77:13 78:3 85:1
- commissions 9:20 66:1 82:4

commitment 8:4

committed 22:24

**committee** 76:14 80:6,7,11, 18,21 81:1,4,8,9,10,16,19,20, 22

committees 80:5

communicate 24:15 45:17 50:23 63:11

communicated 14:11

communicating 22:24

communication 23:3 82:5

communities 13:3 55:16

community 6:7 7:9,16,21,22 8:5,10 9:6,16,17 10:6,7,8,11, 16 11:17,23 12:17,22 13:4,14, 25 14:1 16:20,25 19:1 22:2,8 23:17,19,20,21,22 24:7,16,20, 22 25:1,3,15,24 27:6 28:4 32:11,18 45:19 49:13 52:18 55:2 56:1,10 57:8,18,21,22 62:24 63:9,10 64:3,19 65:25 67:9 68:20,23,24 70:5,15,18 71:16,21,25 72:11,13,14,23 73:2,4,9 75:7 76:2,7,8,14 78:1 82:9,18

comp 80:15,19

compare 51:4

**compared** 42:8,12,15,23 43:25 44:4,6,8,18

comparing 42:10

comparison 42:6,11,18 43:1, 2,5,7,12,14,19 44:2,7 compile 77:19 complaint 16:23 17:6 complaints 16:6 17:21 27:6 55:23 81:1,2,4 completed 2:18 completely 63:9 completes 46:5 complexity 12:22 compliance 46:25 80:10 **comply** 15:3,10 comprehensive 55:5 compromise 23:2 concealed 29:12 concealing 44:24 concern 19:16,19 22:6 23:6 34:13.24 35:1 66:12 concerned 35:19 39:10 60:3 **concerns** 36:5 47:8 51:22 57:8 concludes 82:1 concur 24:14 37:9 condition 29:19 30:11 31:13 conditions 55:1 condolences 16:18 83:5 **conduct** 17:5 29:3 39:13 42:14 conducted 28:11 29:6 conducting 45:13 **conference** 64:4 71:19 confirmation 20:20 conflict 45:15 confrontation 37:15 congratulate 9:18 36:19 congratulates 9:14

congratulations 9:20 10:1,19 48:23 51:8 conjunction 72:12 connecting 68:19 cons 71:21 consideration 80:6,21,24 81:16,23 consistently 44:13 constant 57:24 70:3 constantly 69:25 72:1 consultant 78:6 consultation 18:2 contact 30:3,20 37:22 contacts 59:7 contingency 63:24 continue 25:23 26:20 71:13, 14 79:24 continued 28:23 79:11,13 continues 77:25 78:4 continuing 26:10 Continuous 17:5 **contract** 79:2,4,6,8,17,19,23 80:2 contribute 42:24 44:21 contributions 9:7,15 conversation 19:14 23:1 24:14 26:2 36:11 conversion 78:12 **conveyed** 29:20 30:10 cooperation 55:13 copied 77:14 corner 57:12,14,24 58:6 **Corporal** 11:16,19,22 69:14 71:3 **correct** 20:21,22 corrected 69:6

DBOPC 09/14/2023



DBOPC

09/14/2023

Correction 46:19

Corrections 45:4

correctly 3:17

correspondence 76:21

corridor 2:5

corrupted 40:22

corruption 51:23

**cost** 75:12

**council** 6:22 9:6 53:3 61:23 70:15,18 71:12 76:2 77:17,19 79:20

council's 77:22

councilman 40:11

councils 55:12

counted 34:11

country 34:24 36:22

County 16:1,2,8 29:7 31:22 32:18 59:21

couple 18:1

**couples** 49:22

**court** 6:16 40:11 79:4

courtesy 69:3

cover 28:20

Covid 73:4,6

**CPL** 5:10

CPR 38:17

cracks 69:21

create 55:21

crime 26:10,11,16,21 30:3,19 32:1 42:2 48:21 50:21

crimes 8:17 30:23 42:4,14 43:2,18 52:4

criminal 42:13 68:19

criminality 40:6,24

crises 14:15

crisis 27:22 28:1,2 34:18

41:21,22 70:21,24 critical 14:1 16:22 27:25 31:13 47:22 77:4 79:25

critically 82:20

Cromwell 6:13

Crosman 40:13

cross 62:4

culture 12:18,19 63:8,10

current 17:10 25:23 33:16 56:11 58:16 77:17 79:18 81:13

custom 45:6

cyber 45:16

D

daily 58:9 danger 45:17 dangerous 52:17 66:8 dark 14:16 dash 14:20 52:19,20 data 26:10 77:14 80:25 81:7, 21,24 date 26:23 27:16 44:5,23 78:22 dated 77:10 Davenport 71:5 David 33:8 Davis 6:22,24 45:24 65:10,13, 16 66:7

**day** 2:10 9:8 10:25 12:24 20:15 30:4,25 32:3 33:13 36:22,23 37:6,7 62:1,6 72:6, 11,13,14

**days** 27:11,16 42:8,15,22 43:5,11,17 44:17 52:8 62:1,6 80:8

Deacon 57:14

dead 57:19

**deal** 40:18 51:3 55:14 69:22, 23,25 70:10 73:10

**dealing** 8:16 39:15 66:13 69:9 72:3

**Dean** 71:3

death 35:5,6 57:14,16

deaths 35:23 36:1 57:11,18 58:11,19 74:14

debrief 14:2 16:22 77:4

debriefed 77:7

**deceased** 15:14 16:19 31:4,7 57:23

**December** 33:9 79:10

decision 16:9 37:1 70:11

declined 44:20

decrease 42:17,18,19,21,25 43:6,12,15 44:16

decreased 44:1

decreases 43:17

decreasing 44:14

dedicated 8:15 10:2

Deescalate 34:12

definition 24:12

degree 47:12

delivered 77:1

demand 32:13 53:8 54:7

demands 55:18,21

**department** 8:13 9:14 13:13 14:7 16:3,21 17:5 25:1 27:23 32:18,23 33:15,19 37:4 40:3 45:4 51:25 54:20 58:7 63:21 64:2 69:11 75:9

Department's 33:12

**departments** 51:24 52:14 54:19

Depends 38:24



deployed 35:3 Deputy 6:19 26:5,22 27:13 28:2,20 29:14 30:4,20 31:14 32:7,14,24 33:1,15,23,24 34:2,17 35:9,25 36:20 37:9, 13,17,18 38:1,7,14,18,24 41:6,8 58:15,17 deserve 23:11 designate 21:1 desire 16:19 23:10 83:18 desired 80:9 detail 26:25 details 26:23 27:1,4 78:2 detective 29:2 32:21 **detectives** 29:1,20 30:12 31:14,20 68:19 determine 17:9,22 31:9,15 determined 30:12 Detroit 2:3,14 7:14,15,20 8:13 9:12,13,17,19 13:22 14:5,6 16:3,21 17:5 26:14 27:22,23 30:21 32:17,23 33:10,12,20 34:25 35:4,22 41:3 48:19 49:1,4,5 50:21 51:11,21,25 52:9 53:25 57:2 58:25 59:5,10 61:24 63:7,16 64:13 65:19,24 67:14 68:10,12 72:2 82:8,12 Detroiter 8:1 **Detroiters** 65:18.23 develop 55:4 56:5 developed 64:1 developing 56:4 devices 8:23,24 dialogue 22:16 64:17 65:2 Diamond 71:11 died 35:24 Dietrick 33:2 difficult 83:6

DBOPC 09/14/2023 diligently 69:18 72:20 direct 24:25 28:25 direction 14:25 15:7 directly 14:24 Director 6:16 director's 24:22 disabled 26:9 disappearance 8:20 disciplinary 81:18,21 discontinue 66:4 discovered 28:14 discussion 22:12 24:10 64:20 65:3 75:21 76:17 83:15 dislikes 71:21 disorder 55:17 dispatch 14:8,13 dispute 31:15,17 dissatisfaction 54:24 disseminated 77:2 distance 14:22 distortion 72:25 district 32:19 67:16 district's 7:17 diversity 12:6,17,18,19 docked 35:6 doctors 34:20 document 77:15,21 documents 76:22 domestic 45:10 75:1 **Don** 6:16 donuts 50:13 door 10:5 50:14 doubly 66:8 downtown 34:7 63:16,23

**DPD** 6:15 10:7 14:11,25 15:2, 7,8 36:11 38:16,17 56:18 77:4,10,11,15,16 81:11,13,18, 20,21,25 **DPD's** 80:25 draft 81:3 drafted 80:13 drafts 81:5 drag 26:23,24 27:4 dragged 64:4 dream 48:5 53:11,13 **Drew** 6:12 drifting 26:23,25 27:4 drive 54:2,3 57:13,25 58:3,6 59:4 driving 29:25 30:14 drug 8:16 39:18 40:1 57:24 drugs 62:7 drums 61:4 dual 49:8 due 22:14 26:9 76:10 77:12 81:14 duly 21:3 dumping 70:2 Durhal 6:23 **DV** 73:1 dying 35:18,20 66:11

## Е

earlier 19:25 early 8:4 earn 11:24 ears 71:1 East 82:11 Ecorse 59:1,12 edifice 3:14 9

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100 educated 68:11 educating 39:25 education 39:18 educational 70:9 effect 78:16 effective 55:23 56:4 effectiveness 7:5 efficiencies 17:23 efficiency 7:5 effort 13:20 efforts 17:7 18:5 Eighth 28:6 29:2 eighties 51:7 **elder** 60:6 **elected** 6:7,20 electric 58:6 elementary 39:20 Elgin 78:4 Elmhurst 30:14 **Elton** 72:11,13 email 77:14 82:5 emailed 80:5 emails 73:6 77:11 embedded 45:7 Eminia 67:24 68:8 empathy 27:24 employees 72:21 empower 73:8 EMS 37:20 38:15,21 enact 54:17 encampment 58:6 encounters 45:16 end 63:13 71:22 79:14 ended 58:2

09/14/2023 enforced 18:8 enforcement 9:10 37:19,20 44:25 55:2 engage 19:19 40:23 engagement 72:24 engaging 40:6,21 engineering 45:1 English 45:12 72:3 enhance 13:21 ensure 7:5 9:7 21:3,5 23:9 24:18 56:7 62:15 ensuring 21:7 22:24 entertains 4:7,14,21 9:21 85:5 entire 12:9 13:12,13 28:4 47:22 64:2 entity 40:10,24 entrance 59:16 entrapped 59:13 entrusted 68:22 environment 70:9 environmental 45:1 epidemic 66:5 episode 54:22 equally 22:23 era 64:13 **Eric** 49:23 51:20 erratic 34:15 error 68:21 escalated 79:22 81:6 essential 54:16 55:1 establish 55:4.6 56:3,10 established 54:21 evening 2:1,9 3:24 7:3,13 10:25 32:16 34:22 41:8 49:24, 25 51:18,19 54:12,13 56:24, 25 58:22,23 63:4,5

DBOPC

event 32:9,13,15 72:7 events 9:9 45:18 everybody's 65:8 everyone's 67:2 examiner's 15:20 excellent 13:16 20:1 22:10 23:5 45:21 49:10 69:15 excited 32:21 41:23 45:13 **excuse** 14:6 52:12 excused 3:5,8 execution 12:13 executive 80:13 exhausted 26:2 exists 12:6 exited 28:18 expand 55:8 expect 24:19 75:17 expectation 19:12 expected 21:23 expecting 21:9 **experience** 22:21 32:22 experienced 17:14 experiencing 17:14,16 explain 74:21 75:4,7 explanation 19:21 20:7,8 explosive 55:16 express 13:20 57:8 extend 23:19 57:2 extended 57:3 78:11 extensive 74:15 extraordinary 7:9 extremely 18:14 eye 36:14



# F face 31:3 48:7 50:7 faced 55:18 faces 3:21 facilities 34:21 46:1 facility 36:3 fact 36:20 40:1 66:4 factor 25:15 facts 25:21,22 40:1 51:23 failed 84:11 fair 56:3,7 faith 46:4 72:8,11 fall 80:21 falls 56:18 familiar 3:21 families 31:16 32:21 family 9:8 16:18 31:19 72:6,23 76:9 83:6 fan 12:11 47:10 fast 42:4 54:4 69:6 fatal 30:24 fatally 31:11 father 2:9,12,13,14 favor 23:19 84:3,25 85:10 **FBI** 8:12 federal 52:4 54:17 55:7,8,11 feedback 18:3,25 22:1,23 74:4 feedbacks 82:4 feel 11:23.25 21:21 50:15 62:24 70:12 feels 76:8 fell 15:4 fellow 74:4 felony 26:24

felt 59:23 female 49:8 fence 43:22 fentanyl 35:11 field 12:14 figure 48:20 filed 16:6 **filled** 49:16 finally 18:11 34:23 81:22 finance 55:11 find 45:15 57:19 63:11 77:15 finding 28:25 35:5 fine 53:22 finished 71:15 fire 15:23 28:21 31:20 33:12 36:25 37:4,20 58:2 firearms 29:10 fired 15:15 28:6,18,22 29:5,8 30:15 31:21 firstly 21:6 fiscal 77:17 79:15,18 80:12 Fisher 7:18,20,24 8:4,5,14,25 9:3,14,19 10:4,13 67:18 fled 28:15,24 29:10 31:25 fleeting 10:5 floating 47:19 fly 82:23 flyers 3:25 follow 16:14 24:6 67:3 food 12:18 33:17 foot 28:17 footage 52:11,20,21 footprint 12:7 force 16:4 18:10 29:3,4 35:3 55:4 56:6 59:21 66:9 77:8

hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

AISSANCE

Ford 51:17 52:24 53:3,19 forefront 39:18 Foreign 41:13 foreshadowed 54:22 forewarning 20:7 forgotten 7:15 form 22:9 formation 55:9 formulation 55:9 Fort 30:14 34:8 57:13,25 59:15,17 74:1 forum 76:15 forward 2:6 3:17 13:6,25 18:4 26:3 47:16 54:16 67:8 71:12 79:23 Foster 51:17 54:10,12,14 55:1,11,25 56:10 fought 71:13 found 29:22 31:5 57:22 foundation 19:25 founded 63:13 fourth 7:21 9:4,15 10:4 12:7, 20 13:12 26:4 33:22 41:6,9,11 42:3,12 43:23 44:23 46:6 47:11,15 48:5 50:10 51:8 67:9 68:16,24 70:5,15 71:3,6,25 72:18 73:2 74:1 76:2 fourth— 46:8 Fred 6:22 free 62:24 Friday 19:21 20:11 28:7 friend 59:6 Fries 6:12 80:13 front 14:21 30:13 31:3 52:3 61:19,21 fruit 17:8 full 80:8

full-time 72:21 Fun 72:6 functions 54:20 78:5 Fund 9:8 72:11,13 fundraiser 69:4 funeral 82:24 funny 48:7 future 17:16 20:16 37:5 39:14 75:21

### G

gain 17:23 Galvan 67:19 gang 8:16 garage 28:25 garbage 57:19 Gardner 33:1 Garrett 11:1 **Gary** 11:14 gas 8:24 gathered 32:12 gave 38:19 50:4 general 38:11,18 71:17 generally 25:5 generation 7:25 **Genia** 60:15 gentleman 64:23 get along 69:8 ghetto 55:19 56:2,3 gifts 33:18 give 2:16,18 17:2 25:4 38:11 45:14 49:19,20 54:2 62:18 79:7 giveaway 45:23 giving 13:7 61:14 70:1

09/14/2023 Gleeson 57:14 glory 2:16,18 goal 26:19 God 45:22 54:7 83:2,3 good 2:1,9 7:12 21:11,21 34:1, 10 41:8 49:15,24,25 50:13,23 51:7,12,18,19,22 53:3 54:12, 13 56:24,25 58:22,23 60:9 63:4,5 69:8,12 70:6 73:11,20 goodness 2:11 government 54:25 55:6 governments 55:3 graduate 8:1 graduated 8:12 grass 62:4 grateful 2:6 3:14 4:4 13:18 63:8 gratitude 13:20 grave 51:22 gray 30:14 great 3:21 12:5 19:10,23 25:9 31:22 46:20 48:20 53:5,6,12 59:7,20,25 76:10 greatly 4:5 7:4 18:22 65:21 green 14:16 53:5 70:3 grew 59:1 grievance 55:5,17 grievances 54:23 55:22 grocer 34:6 **Grosse** 48:19 ground 15:4,5 group 8:21 groups 63:16 grown 50:7 guarantee 20:15 guard 50:8

DBOPC

guardrails 24:18 guess 12:2 37:3 guidelines 56:4 gun 15:3,9,22 44:24 45:14 gunshot 29:18 30:9 31:3,6,12 gunshots 59:19 Gutierrez 69:19,20 gym 71:10

### Н

habituated 58:1 half 39:8 57:15 hall 33:3 50:8 Hamawi 5:18 83:12 hand 14:22 68:25 handgun 14:23 15:5,11 28:14 **handing** 18:17 handle 17:13 34:12 handled 64:2 handling 55:23 hands 62:12 Handyside 6:16 hanging 32:4 Hansen 79:24 Hansen's 79:9,10,13,19,20 happen 21:4 61:17 happened 25:6,7,16 31:15 52:6,9 happening 63:16 happy 32:21,25 50:1 51:5 60:2 Happy's 57:25 hard 73:11,12 hardship 81:24 hardworking 52:15



have— 22:7 Hayes 6:11 Head 72:24 Headquarters 33:10 82:9 health 14:15 27:9,17,22 34:22 36:5 58:19 71:5 healthy 28:4 hear 23:21 24:19 25:20,24 50:3 65:14 74:16 78:18 heard 13:23 14:13 59:9 65:13 74:7 75:16 hearing 4:11,18 5:15,22 6:4 12:3 49:12 67:8 82:14 83:7 heart 51:21 67:2 70:14 heartfelt 83:5 Heavenly 2:11 heinous 25:6 held 83:8 hell 50:23 71:1,2 helped 8:21 71:9 helpful 18:14 Hermon 72:13 Hernandez 3:11 11:4,7,11 12:2,16 13:6,16,19,24 32:14 47:5.6 hiding 28:25 high 8:1,24 28:9 30:1 39:20 66:3 high-level 17:7 high-profile 74:14 higher 33:6 hip 29:19 Hispanic 72:16 historical 64:16 history 36:22 hitting 30:16

09/14/2023 hold 17:17 47:2 52:1,13 Holderbaum 12:8 41:8,13,16, 17,19,22 42:10,22 43:9,24 44:15 45:6,21 46:13,15,17,23 47:23 48:24 49:7 68:25 69:2 holdover 83:17 Holley 2:25 4:8,15,24 5:19 6:2 9:23 21:12,13 22:18 33:23,24 34:3,5,23 35:15 36:9 80:18 85:7 Holt 3:9 4:9,10,16,25 5:12,20 6:1 48:14 49:2 64:9,10,11,23 65:1 68:13 76:13 81:23 84:1 home 26:9 28:18 32:5 34:14 58:1,3 60:4 homeowner 28:18 homes 60:22 homicide 26:12 29:3,4 homicides 42:7,12 44:7,8,9,15 honest 52:15 honesty 25:12 honor 2:16,18 7:17 honorable 16:25 67:14 honored 32:10 37:7 honoring 7:19 honors 36:24 **Hood** 40:10 hope 9:1 22:7 26:17,19 39:13 40:20 66:3 67:4 71:15 hopes 34:21 hoping 44:21 horrible 61:1,20 hospital 15:14 29:20 30:10 31:8 40:14 hospitality 4:4 hostility 55:21 hosting 3:24 17:1 82:11

DBOPC

hot 74:9 hour 39:7 hours 34:20 house 3:24 39:16 62:8,21 housed 68:16 household 37:13 Houser 71:4 houses 51:12 57:20 60:21 61:1 housing 41:2 HR 6:15 78:6,17,24 79:1 80:25 **Hudson** 51:3 huge 12:11 human 8:16 76:16 humbled 10:13 hundred 42:9 hurt 37:15 53:17

### I I

**I75** 14:4 77:5 idea 19:17,18 identified 28:20 identify 5:6 identifying 8:19 31:20 identity 62:16 III's 6:23 ill 82:20 illegal 36:6,7 61:18,21,22,25 62:1 66:21 imagine 36:4 38:11 immediately 15:12 impact 13:25 14:1 19:2 22:2,7, 8 23:17,20,22 24:7,20,22 25:15 39:24 44:12 52:18 65:25

impactful 37:1,2



implementation 55:10 important 25:22 49:12 63:20 68:3 69:24 impound 53:21 impressed 39:11 improve 17:23 **Improvement** 17:5 improvements 17:3 improving 77:3 inability 54:25 incident 14:1,9 15:24 16:7,15, 22 29:14 30:1,16,23 31:12 34:6,7 52:19 77:4,5 incidents 28:5 include 40:21 45:14 57:11 63:18 included 64:17 65:3 includes 76:23 including 13:14 16:12 22:6 37:3 incoming 76:21 increase 26:15,17 42:13,24 43:8,13,25 44:3,8,9,17 57:17 78:14.15 increased 55:19 increases 27:17 44:11 indemnification 77:23 indicating 40:8 individual 75:17 individuals 7:8 28:12,14,15 37:2 68:23 **influx** 57:23 inform 17:11 59:4 information 4:1 16:11,20 22:25 24:16,25 25:2 30:2,18 31:24 58:18,21 62:15 64:21 73:10,17,18 75:6 77:19 81:1, 22

DBOPC 09/14/2023 informed 59:6 ingratiate 64:5 initial 28:24 initially 31:17 initiated 20:5 39:23 injured 15:24 26:7 37:22 injuries 38:25 injury 26:10 77:8 innovative 56:5 inside 28:13 68:16 instilled 8:2 instituted 56:1 institutions 55:6 intelligent 49:5 intelligently 35:9,14 36:15 interact 19:23 interaction 39:10 40:15 interest 53:24 83:19 International 8:1 Interpreters 6:14 interrupt 11:12 interrupting 14:16 intervention 28:1,2 41:21,22 70:19,21,24 introduction 2:22 6:6 67:17 inventory 17:13 investigate 28:12 29:21 36:13 investigated 27:2 investigation 15:18 29:4,6 30:2,17 40:19 54:20 investigations 18:8 investigative 17:6,22 81:5 **investigator** 6:10,13 16:23 17:4,20 19:18 20:11 24:24 25:16 78:4,5,7,9,10,23

NAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

Investigator's 20:25 investigators 17:10,12,17 18:17 20:6 21:7 78:11 invisible 53:23 invite 39:15 invocation 2:6.8 invoices 79:14,15 80:1 involved 14:3 22:19 29:24 40:25 64:19 involving 40:10 issue 21:3 24:4 74:9,13,15 75:20 issued 27:3 issues 11:16 12:22 22:12 28:4 36:6 47:13 69:11,23 70:2,4 72:4 73:9 items 19:1 67:3,7 80:12

### J

jacket 14:18,22,23 Jacqueline 2:7 jail 53:22 **jails** 54:4 James 25:20 51:17 January 52:6,7 jarring 53:1 Jasmine 78:20 **Jason** 6:17 Javier 84:10,14 **Jeep** 62:2 Jefferson 59:16 **Jerome** 6:10 Jesus 3:11 Jesus' 2:19 **Jim** 2:25 job 10:23 12:5,8,21 20:2 21:23

23:5 25:9 34:1,2 48:3,5,20 50:23 59:7,20,25 60:9 76:3 83:1 John 25:19 82:11 Johnson 54:18 join 3:22 20:5 71:17 joined 2:7 13:24 21:10 47:15 joining 3:20 joint 70:11 Jonya 6:11 journey 47:17 judge 52:4 75:13 judicial 55:13 68:18 Jujuan 5:24 **July** 79:16 June 44:1,9 78:6 justice 8:20 juvenile 32:2 juveniles 31:10

## Κ

K9 28:23 Kai 12:15 Katrina 6:16 keeping 36:14 61:3 Kellogg 69:13 Kemeny 3:15,19 46:3 Kia 30:14 kick 40:1 kids 50:11 51:10 killing 52:8,11 kind 21:14 24:18 35:7,17,23 kindness 2:11 kinds 74:22 Kingdom 72:14

09/14/2023 knew 52:23 67:20 knowledgeable 38:8 L lack 55:23 ladies 68:3 Ladon 6:22 lady 50:5,17 Lafayette 82:12 Landrum 54:11 56:13,25 57:1, 15 58:4,13 Landscape 71:19 language 6:14 22:14 24:11 41:13 larcenies 43:15,21 larceny 43:18 large 3:10 29:22 larger 24:9 Lastly 5:23 33:7 late 40:11 laughing 8:24 law 9:9 37:18,20 55:2 lawn 62:21 lawsuits 77:16 laying 57:19 lead 8:22 leader 7:20 67:9 71:16 leaders 6:8 53:23 leadership 8:18 9:18 12:9,12, 13 14:12 17:12 19:25 32:22 leading 8:4 26:15 47:15 learn 73:9 leave 35:15 81:20 83:13 84:14 Lebron 69:15 led 8:6 13:19 15:10 16:15

DBOPC

left 37:4 41:3 46:11 legal 34:25 35:19 36:2 77:22 80:16,20 legally 36:3 66:20 Lemon 40:2 Leonard 41:20 letter 70:23 Levalley 33:8,14 37:3 Lever 33:2 liaison 68:18 license 53:20 licensed 60:25 licensing 45:1 lieutenant 19:20,24 20:17 32:20 39:8 76:25 life 8:4 9:17 11:16 12:20 13:21 16:16 69:11,22 72:3 lifelong 57:1 63:6 68:9 lift 7:8 light 53:16,20 70:4 lights 66:6,8 Linda 3:1 25:9 54:17 Lisa 3:6 7:11 10:17 67:16 **listed** 31:13 listen 53:1 listened 64:5 listening 48:18 **literature** 54:14,16 litigation 25:14 77:16 live 7:16 10:15 11:8 13:22 38:6 50:22 59:12 60:19 61:2 63:7 75:2 lives 12:10,13 32:10,13 living 60:22 local 32:11 34:18 35:13,25 54:25 55:3,6,7



located 50:10 76:23 location 30:13 31:2 logging 75:11 long 8:8 50:17 longer 56:11 longtime 8:8 looked 65:20 **loss** 16:16 lost 32:10 lot 3:21,23 27:5 32:2,4 33:17, 18 47:13 53:14 54:18 56:19 59:23 66:15 69:9 73:18 loud 2:2 62:8 70:25 love 2:11 4:2 10:17 59:2 60:20 63:17 76:10 loved 16:18 low 50:21 lying 15:5 31:3,5

### Μ

Madam 20:21 74:6 made 14:14 28:11 59:5 64:15 major 35:12 54:21 55:16 66:15 majority 52:15 make 5:5 8:4 13:8 17:19 20:16 24:24 40:19 46:25 49:17 53:7. 19,21 54:6 62:14 67:20 69:18 71:8 75:8 makes 52:17 making 18:11 53:11,13 70:11 male 14:14,19,22 15:3,4,9,11, 13,19,21 30:9 man 14:21 15:5 21:15 management 18:1,5 81:7 manager 72:24 80:13 manner 39:16

09/14/2023 manslaughter 53:17 March 43:24 44:7 Marie 6:21 67:18 73:20 marijuana 34:24 35:2,6,11 36:1,2,4,5,7,14 66:13,17,21 marks 66:3 Martius 32:9 Mary 32:15 Mary's 28:8,16 materials 73:1 Matrix 72:24 matter 10:24 16:15 70:7,12 84:7 matters 80:5 **Maya** 48:22 mayor 39:23 53:3 mayor's 65:1 mayors 55:12 MCD 32:13 **MDOC** 45:4 means 63:1 74:24 75:13 meantime 79:24 measures 62:11 mechanism 55:5 mechanisms 55:23 56:4 media 6:17 40:22 medical 15:20 40:10 83:13 84:15 medication 34:21 medics 15:12,13 29:18 31:4,8 meet 55:20 73:6 meeting 2:3,15 4:13 14:11 20:12,18,20 22:5 23:5 41:25 45:19 49:12 57:7 67:5 80:9 82:8,9,22 83:9,20,24 84:8,21 85:4,13,17

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

DBOPC

meetings 7:2 21:6 62:23,24 73:4,25 76:8 79:5,25 80:7 meets 23:10 Melanie 5:11 Melissa 33:1 member 6:22 8:8,14 9:5 10:11 members 32:12,25 41:24 Memorial 32:8 men 8:20 mental 14:14 27:9,14,15,17, 18.21 34:22 58:18 70:1 71:5 mention 10:9 20:22 59:6 64:15 69:22 76:24 mentioned 19:1 46:18 56:25 69:13 merger 8:25 message 64:1 mic 2:2 12:3 Michael 40:2 Michigan 15:24 45:4 46:19 mile 28:9 59:19 72:8 Miller 59:15 mind 19:7.9 Minds 46:20 mini 60:10 Minia 68:9 minimum 34:8 Minister 49:23 51:16,18,20 52:12,23 Minneapolis 71:18 Minnesota 71:18 **Minnie** 47:23 minority 55:15 **minors** 8:23 minutes 4:13,19,22 5:10,16, 17,23,24 6:5 34:9 53:2

misconduct 23:1 misdemeanor 26:25 mishandle 70:4 missed 19:22 41:14 mission 8:7 Mister 49:19 mitigate 28:3 moment 73:5 Monday 3:23 32:16 82:24 monitor 16:6 monitoring 77:25 month 22:13 45:20 52:7 58:1 78:22 80:15 monthly 45:18 73:25 77:20 months 52:9 **Moore** 3:7 morning 29:16 32:4 50:14 57:12 82:23 mother 8:2 65:7 82:20 motion 4:7,14,21 5:18 9:21 83:11,21,24 84:7,9,20 85:3,5 motions 5:5 83:9 motor 43:18.21 Mount 72:13 mouth 38:4,9,10,11,12 move 2:5 3:13 4:6,8,12,15,24 5:16 6:6 7:6 9:23 13:25 18:4 26:3 41:6 42:4 49:11 71:12 76:19 79:23 83:23 84:20 85:7 moved 4:10,17 5:1,12,14,19, 21 6:1,3 58:25 84:2,24 movement 39:19 movie 45:24 46:1 moving 26:10 28:5 32:7 54:16 85:4 MPOS 69:20,23,24

DBOPC 09/14/2023 multiple 31:3,6,12 municipalities 55:13 murder 8:21 52:5 murdered 52:5 **Murphy** 78:4,10 Ν name's 3:18 narcotic 35:13 narcotics 39:19 national 9:8 46:4 72:7 Nava 47:18 needed 17:13 55:14 negatives 71:22 neglected 47:18 Negro 56:8 Negroes 54:24 56:6 neighborhood 10:22,23 11:1 28:16 55:4,6 61:3 62:7 69:12 70.3 neighborhoods 9:4 27:7 58:7 63:24 neighbors 74:25 news 19:10 51:22 newsletter 68:4 nice 33:17 Nicholas 40:10 Nichols 52:5 Nicole 7:18,20,24 9:14,18 67:18 72:21 night 9:8 45:24 46:1 61:13 72:7 nineties 60:8 ninth 26:8 46:5 nitrous 8:23 noise 60:23,24 61:3,4

non- 74:25 80:1 non-domestic 74:23 non-fatal 26:13 43:23 44:3,13 non-profit 41:2 non-standard 79:12 **nonviolent** 27:14.19 **Norma** 67:19 normal 24:12.13 noted 15:21 21:3 notice 77:1 noticed 82:19 notification 45:6 76:24 notify 80:8,9 Noting 2:4 **NPO** 69:15 NPOS 45:13 72:5 number 5:7 15:15,19 18:20 31:25 41:23 65:20,22 76:23 79:9 numbers 7:3 Ο objection 4:11,18 5:15,22 6:4 9:25 19:14 26:2 observed 28:9 29:17 30:8 31:2 observing 34:10 obstructing 29:12 occasions 35:11 occurred 14:4 29:22 77:8

occurring 36:6,7

**OCI** 16:23 17:4,14 19:20 20:5, 25 78:5,10

OCI's 20:14

**OCIS** 17:10

NAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

October 33:13 46:4,5 52:9

09/14/2023 8,11

offers 52:2

78:20

72:10 82:10

offenses 43:19

office 6:22,23 16:1,2,8 17:3,20 29:8 31:22 34:7 45:10 65:1 75:5 77:1,6 78:12 81:25

offer 10:21 16:17 33:4 67:4

- officer 5:17 11:1 14:3 16:5 25:8 26:8 28:16,22 29:9,13 36:22 37:15,16,19 38:7,9 39:19 40:2 48:1 56:10 58:9 59:21 69:13,14,15,19 71:4 83:12 84:10,13
- officers 7:7 10:7,23 12:15,23 16:9 26:7 27:7 28:3,6,7,10,19, 23 29:5,11,17 30:6 31:2 34:11 37:19 38:17 48:4 52:3,15,16 56:5,8 62:15,19 69:13 71:2

official 6:7 16:7

officials 6:20 53:11

- offline 21:1
- **Ohio** 53:9 54:6
- **older** 63:14
- **OMA** 80:10

on-duty 26:9

- one-on-one 39:11
- **one-to-one** 16:10

ongoing 15:18 40:14

**online** 75:6

open 3:24 11:24 19:14 22:16, 22 23:2,3 78:19,23

operating 81:6,17

operations 56:2

opinion 32:6

opportunities 55:8

opportunity 7:8 19:22,23 33:4 41:10 57:6

oppose 85:2 **opposed** 84:6 85:13 order 22:25 55:2 74:7,22 75:1, orders 45:2 68:18 74:23 79:12 ordinance 53:15 60:23 61:4 organization 36:13 organizations 8:6 **Otter** 57:24 out-of-class 78:8 Outer 57:13 58:3,6 outlets 55:7 outlined 76:21 outlines 54:15 outputs 17:25 outrageous 62:22 outreach 9:9 72:2,6 74:21 outstanding 77:10 Overcoming 55:1 overdose 57:11,12,14,16,18 58:11,19 overdoses 58:16 overdosing 35:18 overdue 77:12 oversees 69:20 oversight 7:10 77:3 overview 17:2,7 oxide 8:23

DBOPC

Ρ

package 77:9 packet 67:21 73:7 77:15 packet all 73:3 packets 76:22 77:21 paid 76:3 79:13,14 80:1

18 painting 22:15 panhandler 57:23 pants 14:16 **Papa** 45:24 paper 32:6 74:12 75:3,4 parent 72:23 parents 33:5 66:17,20 park 40:15 59:1 61:18,21 71:10,11,13,14 72:11,13 parked 62:4 parking 61:15 62:2 parks 70:5 parliamentarian 24:11 parole 46:24 part 7:14 13:4 24:22 26:11,15 37:1 49:12 59:9,10 72:16 74:8 participate 55:9 participated 8:6 participating 26:22 27:5 participation 7:2 22:11 partner 41:19 partnered 17:4 partnership 45:3 46:19,21 party 29:23 31:9 33:17 pass 73:1 passed 60:1 82:21 84:7 passes 85:3 passion 21:2 passionate 18:11 past 9:2 17:15 22:20 23:5 34:7 44:19 45:20 pastry 51:2 patience 82:1 Patillo 6:16 patrol 8:15,19 9:1 10:7,8

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com 313.567.8100

14:19,21 27:9 28:8 55:20 64:14,15,19 65:2 patrolled 63:20 patroller 63:12 patrolling 14:18 62:20 64:14 patrols 8:25 10:6 63:18,25 64:2 patrons 36:2 pay 53:22 78:8 81:21 83:13 84:15 peace 34:11 72:9,12 people 18:20 32:1,19 35:18, 20,23,24 39:15,25 46:24 49:5 51:6 52:16 53:3,14 57:20,22 59:23 60:5,22 61:2 63:19 64:6,14,15 66:5,7,10,15 73:12 percent 42:9 perfect 21:25 23:2 period 42:10,17,25 permanent 48:7 permission 53:7 56:16,21 67:6 person 13:7 21:1 25:8 36:12 38:8 44:22 64:18 75:17 personal 68:17 74:7,16,22,23 75:1,7,11 79:17 personnel 80:17,22 Petoskey 30:6 phenomenal 10:9,23 12:8,21 47:21 48:21 76:3.4.16 Phillips 78:14 **phone** 45:16 photos 14:12 physical 31:18 70:1 pickup 29:24 picture 22:15 68:2 85:14

piece 54:14 74:12 75:3,4

DBOPC 09/14/2023 **pivotal** 17:19 **Pizza** 57:25 60:2 place 20:8,9 22:13 23:22 34:16 35:7,18 46:22 58:11 62:14 **plan** 63:24 planned 80:14 plans 20:13 play 61:3 played 8:19 pleasure 51:11 **PM** 28:7 46:3 73:25 77:9 82:8, 10 point 15:11 23:10 26:12 28:14 34:22 40:23 48:19 pointed 15:21 pointing 14:24 15:6 points 79:7 **police** 2:3,12 5:17 6:7 7:7,10, 21 8:7,13,16 9:2,5,12,13,15, 19 10:23 11:1 12:14 14:6 15:25 16:3,5,12,17,21 22:10 23:1 25:1,8,17 26:4,8 27:23 29:12 32:18,23 33:15,19 35:3 36:25 39:19 40:18 45:15 51:24,25 52:13,15 53:4,15 54:20 55:15,18,24,25 56:1,2,6 57:7,11 58:7 59:7,17,20 60:9 63:8,10,21,22 64:3 65:17,18 66:1 67:15 68:13,14 69:10,12, 15 71:4 72:16 policies 56:7 81:11,14 policy 16:4 39:2 55:10 56:4 81:9 **poor** 70:25 porch 30:13 61:4,16 Porter 52:8,11

position 33:6,12 76:3

positions 78:7,19,23 80:17,20

positive 32:7 66:10 positives 71:22 possibly 23:16 post 34:7 **posted** 40:14 postpone 83:10,19,23 84:7,20 postponed 85:3 postponement 83:18 Powerpoint 14:7,12 20:1 **PPO** 74:7,20 **PPOS** 45:9 75:5 practices 55:20 praise 2:16,19 **pray** 2:9 prayers 83:6 precinct 7:21 9:4,5,15 10:5 12:7,21 13:12 26:4,8 28:6 29:2,17,21 30:6,12,24 33:22 41:7,9,11 42:3,12 43:23 44:23 45:8,18 46:6 47:11,15 48:1,6 51:8 59:3 63:7 64:12 67:9 68:17,24 69:6,7 70:6,15 71:3, 25 72:18 73:2 74:1 76:2 82:10 precincts 7:18 49:7 predominantly 57:21 preliminary 16:3 premises 34:20 preparing 31:21 Presbyterian 82:11 presence 21:6 present 3:2,9 6:9,13,20 7:1 9:2 19:20 25:5 36:12 39:9

71:20,24 72:14 73:19 79:16

presentation 14:5,8 67:21

presented 18:2 64:24 72:17

presentations 18:2

80:14

73:3



DBOPC

presenting 71:18 president 9:1 67:18 68:24 74:6 press 64:4 **Pressley** 2:1,21,24 3:12 4:3,17 5:1,4,9,14,21 6:3,25 7:23 9:21,25 10:19 13:18 14:10 15:2,18 16:11 18:24 19:5,12 21:2,25 22:4,8,22 23:7,14,23 24:2,9 26:1 28:1 33:21 34:4 36:10,18 37:11 39:3,6 41:5 46:7,10 47:4 48:9,12,15,25 49:4,10,16 51:14 52:22,25 54:9,13 56:9,12,15,20,22,24 58:12,15 60:7,11,13,17 61:6,8 62:13 63:1 64:8,10 65:6,11,14 66:24 67:1,12,25 68:5 73:24 75:25 76:6,18 77:5 82:3,13,16 83:3,5,17,22,25 84:2,6,18,22, 24 85:2,8,10,13 **pretty** 59:13 previous 42:7,8,15,16,20,23 43:3,4,10,17 previously 33:3 pride 49:8 prior 33:16 43:4 80:8 private 40:9,16,18,24 proactive 47:9,11 probation 46:24 problem 51:9 55:14 63:23 66:15,23 problems 70:3 procedures 81:6,18 process 17:2,6,11,22 22:14,19 25:23 39:14 68:18 70:11 74:9 77:25 80:2,25 81:21 processes 21:5 procurement 79:5,22 procurements 79:5 produce 13:3

09/14/2023 produces 14:23 producing 18:18 product 21:9 71:23 production 17:10,16 profanity 22:14 professional 79:8 program 3:25 8:11 10:10 40:4 45:11 56:5 63:13 programs 3:23 45:14 55:10,25 progress 17:9 27:11,20 project 20:4 70:3 promoted 32:20 36:23,24 promotion 36:21 39:14 56:7 promotional 32:17 80:25 pronounced 15:14 30:11 31:4, 7 properly 4:10,17 5:1,14,21 6:3 84:2,24 property 40:16,18 42:4 proposal 80:12 propose 53:13,14 pros 71:21 **Prosecutor's** 16:1,2,8 29:7 31:22 protect 60:4 73:22 protected 62:17 protection 55:19 56:3 68:17 74:7,22,23 75:1,8,11 protocol 15:24 37:14,16,17,24 38:2 proud 7:25 32:24 71:7,15,16, 23 proudly 12:25 prove 53:15 provide 16:20 27:24,25 28:11 30:3 34:21 38:15 55:13 56:2 58:21 73:16 75:6 78:1 79:2,

11,24 80:4

provided 25:2

providing 2:8 6:17,18 26:6 30:22

public9:1616:12,1422:2525:733:1037:1940:5,1549:13,1753:255:8,1066:1967:768:1080:1082:9

publicly 40:22 47:20

pull 39:2 58:17

pulled 44:5 58:20

purchase 79:12

purchases 80:2

pursued 28:17

pushback 25:20

**put** 10:4 15:3,9 42:9,23 53:22, 23 54:7 64:5 82:4

putting 73:7

qualify 78:8 quality 9:16 11:16 12:20 13:21 69:11,22 72:3

Q

Quantez 2:24

quarter 44:16

**question** 42:5 48:16 83:10,14 84:3,12,16

**questions** 16:14 18:25 22:1 23:11 33:22 36:16 39:4 41:5 46:7 47:4,7 48:10 74:3 76:12 82:4

queue 81:11 quick 67:17 Quickly 35:15

**Quinn** 6:18

quintuple 30:23

quorum 2:4 3:13



racing 26:23,24 27:4 radio 63:12,18 raining 10:6 raised 7:25 15:5 22:6,13 23:6 68:10 Rakan 5:18 83:12 **Ramirez** 67:10,11,13,24 68:8, 9,14 69:2,17 70:8,25 71:14 72:5 73:1,14 74:11,18,21 75:15,18,23 ramp 62:2 ramping 18:19 ran 28:10 53:16 79:9 rank 33:1,17 ranks 32:20 rarely 52:2 rate 17:10,16 28:9 30:1 reach 23:18 64:21 **reached** 16:10 71:22 reaches 14:22 read 18:13,15,21 20:19 42:2 71:1 77:5 reading 19:13 32:6 ready 83:14 84:3,15 real 36:17 40:12 67:17 69:6,8 reason 21:17,21 50:22 reasonable 17:9 36:11 56:20 **receive** 10:14 14:5 16:13 received 30:7 57:11 receives 79:21 receiving 16:21 24:16,25 recent 8:25 recently 74:14 reckless 29:9 54:4

R

recognition 33:6 recognitions 12:14 recognizes 84:18 recommendation 17:25 18:4 83:11 84:10,13 recommendations 56:17 77:3 80:16,19 recommends 55:3 record 5:6 12:4 13:24 17:24 21:10 recording 67:19 recovered 27:1,2 recovering 26:9 Recreation 3:15,19 recruit 56:6 recruiting 78:18,24 79:1 red 53:4.16.20 66:5.8 reduce 65:22 66:10 reduced 65:21 reduction 26:11,12,13 45:11 reductions 26:11,18 reek 66:17 referencing 76:22 reflect 24:7 reflective 13:1,2 refuses 52:1 regard 21:9 22:23 35:10,22 36:15 regular 56:6 regularly 62:20 **Reiss** 69:14 related 25:21 26:25 27:9,17 30:18 36:1 relates 20:14 80:22 Relation 70:15 relations 7:22 9:6,16 13:15

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

45:19 56:1 63:9,10 64:3 67:9 68:24 71:25 73:2 76:2,14 relationship 16:7 46:22 55:15 70:6 74:24 relative 46:8 released 52:7 releases 15:11 rely 11:1 remain 34:19 remaining 26:18 remember 23:7 32:10.12 40:2 50:7 69:2.3 remembrance 2:17 remove 70:22 71:7 removed 28:13 40:8 58:8 70:24 render 37:16,23 38:2 rendered 79:15 renderings 24:10 **renders** 15:12 report 7:7 13:25 15:20 16:8 18:22 19:2 21:22 22:2,8 23:17,18,20,22 24:8,20,22,23, 24 25:15 26:3.7 33:20.22 35:17 41:7 42:3 45:17 46:5 48:18 50:3 52:18 56:11 57:9, 10 58:10.18 65:25 68:6 76:19 82:2 reported 14:15 22:10 58:14 reporter 6:17 reporting 17:23 58:16 79:4 reports 18:13,16 21:24 23:9 49:11 65:18 77:13 representation 77:23 representative 6:21 20:17 representatives 6:7,20

representing 20:2

request 15:25 16:7 78:15

79:23 80:25 81:18 requested 77:13 requesting 77:11,22 requests 77:10,12,14 81:1,22 requires 38:9 requisition 78:14,23,25 79:17 research 55:12 79:5 researching 21:8 resident 47:8 56:3 57:1 58:24 63:7 68:9 residents 9:10 23:11 41:9 55:9 57:6 69:9,10 70:10 73:8 resisting 29:12 resolution 7:19 9:22 45:15 resolved 9:11 resource 68:20 72:1,10 resources 75:7 respect 25:7 53:8 54:1,2,5,6,7 63:17 respecting 61:2 respective 80:6 respond 54:25 58:10 responded 30:12 responder 37:21 responders 32:11 36:25 37:7 response 55:5 59:19 responsibility 8:3 12:7 responsive 58:5 restore 45:2 result 55:22 resulting 77:8 results 13:2 44:12 retaliating 62:10 retention 17:24 retired 21:19

**retirement** 33:9 76:24 return 28:21 returned 31:19 returning 73:17 Reverend 40:11 review 16:2,4 56:1,7 81:15,24, 25 reviewed 80:24 reviewing 19:8,9 Rewards 30:21 Ricardo 3:7 **Rick** 11:21 rid 23:16 24:3 riding 27:7 **Riot** 54:21 **River** 59:12 **Riverside** 71:11,13 robberies 26:15 42:19 44:16, 18,20 **Robert** 6:12 Rodriguez 12:15 69:16 **Rojas** 12:15 role 8:19 20:14 32:23 roll 57:19 Ronald 51:17 room 33:11 76:9 83:4 Rosedale 60:19 **Rosemont** 31:1.16 Roseville 59:1 **Rouge** 59:12 rounds 15:15,19 routine 27:9 28:8 run 53:20 63:22,23 66:8 running 66:5

S

Sacred 51:21 sacrificed 32:12 safe 53:7,8,13,19 54:3 safety 8:10 9:16 25:7 33:10 37:19 45:1,14 82:9 sake 67:6 82:5 salary 78:13,15,20 sales 8:22 36:8 salutes 9:14 Sandifer 5:25 Sarah 25:17,19 Saturday 3:23 45:23 scene 14:9 15:13 28:22 29:17, 21,25 30:8,12 31:4,7,10,25 32:1 schedule 80:7 scheduled 46:1 scholarships 72:17 school 8:2 32:5 39:20 66:17 68:11 schools 66:14,15 72:18 Scott 33:3 search 28:17 seat 63:19 74:3 secretary 2:22 6:8 8:9 9:7 14:2 20:19,21 25:16 36:12 67:19 82:6 secretary's 24:23 76:19 **secure** 71:2 sells 36:3 sending 73:5 senior 45:23,24 73:17 78:3,9 sense 21:7 sentiment 64:11



separately 5:6 September 4:6,13,19,22 14:3 28:7 29:15 30:4,25 31:1 32:9, 11,16 33:9,13 44:5 45:23,25 77:9 82:8 sergeant 6:18 14:18 19:24 32:20 39:8 69:20 Sergeants 19:20 20:18 serve 41:10 69:24 73:22 75:17,18 served 75:9 serves 8:9.25 9:6 75:10 service 8:5 9:17 10:2 27:9,10, 13,14 32:9 33:11,19 55:8 56:10 66:20 services 6:17 55:19 71:17 73:17 79:2,8,11,13,15,17,18, 25 session 4:22 5:10,24 84:9,11 85:3 sessions 4:20 83:10 set 47:3 58:5 60:14 66:9 settlement 77:24 seventh 4:14.19.23 82:10 sex 42:14 sexual 42:14 shade 70:13 Shah 2:22,23,24,25 3:1,2,3,4, 6,7,9,11 5:3,5 6:9 20:22 36:13 64:18,21,25 76:20 77:13 78:3, 17 79:8 80:4,23 81:16 82:6,7 share 16:11 54:19 64:5 71:4 shared 55:17 64:12 sharply 44:16 Shelley 41:16 57:9 **Shelly** 58:4 Sheriff 59:21 sheriff's 75:9

# DBOPC 09/14/2023 **Shields** 29:16 **shirt** 14:16,17 **shoot** 15:10 29:23 shooting 14:4 29:25 30:8,24 shootings 26:13 43:23 44:4, 13 **shop** 18:9 57:16 short 36:17 65:5 **shot** 14:24 15:4,6 25:8 28:18 29:15 30:5 31:11,19 32:2 35:23 shotgun 21:15 **shots** 14:8,20 15:16,23 28:6, 22 29:5,9 30:15 31:21 35:24 52:19 Shotspotter 30:7 Shotsstoppers 70:17 Shotstoppers 64:20 **show** 13:2 20:7 21:10 43:17 45:21 51:24 75:12,19 showed 14:20 showers 46:2 shown 44:17 **Si** 6:17 siblings 8:3 side 57:20 65:19 sidekick 49:2 sidewalk 62:3,4 sign 6:14 18:16,21 signed 9:19 40:14 80:3 significant 28:5 30:23 36:21 **signify** 84:4,25 signs 40:17 53:24 54:3,7 silent 12:1 silver 29:24 31:6 Sims 32:14

sincerely 16:17 single 12:24 52:2 sir 46:13,15,17 60:7 **Sister** 59:5 sit 71:11 site 57:5 sitting 6:18 26:6 48:18 situation 25:13 34:8,12 39:15 52:17 situations 25:13 Sixth 30:24 sized 17:19 33:17 Skylar 33:11 slash 29:23 **slow** 53:9,10 small 11:19 **smile** 48:7 Smith 49:23,24 50:1,15 51:5, 15 84:10,14 smoke 35:12 smoking 66:18,21,22 social 45:7,11 70:11 71:5 **society** 55:18 solidified 20:14 solo 48:21 Solution 69:9 **solutions** 63:12,15 solving 30:22 **SOP** 81:3 sort 20:24 21:13 74:13 source 55:16 southern 7:15 southwest 7:14,20,25 9:1,4 10:16 12:17 45:22 50:20 51:11 57:1 58:25 59:3,5 68:10,12 72:2



space 4:4 Spanish 45:12 47:25 48:1 72:3 **speak** 10:3 11:4,15 19:23 30:3,19 32:2 35:9,14 36:15 38:25 39:7 43:22 45:12 47:25 49:18 64:18 speaker 60:14 65:9 66:25 72:23 speakers 49:21 73:3,8,11 speaking 9:12 34:17,19 37:18 38:3.10 48:1 50:2 speaks 70:16 special 55:25 62:19 66:9 specifically 38:3 speed 28:10 30:1 **spent** 39:8 spirit 8:3 spiritual 70:1 **spoke** 19:25 32:15 38:18 76:16 spread 18:16 Springdale 8:8 65:17,18,24 St 28:8,16 82:11 staff 6:6,9 17:11 33:13 56:17 77:18,24 78:19 79:16 80:8,9, 15,19 81:3,12 staffing 78:2 stand 52:3 standard 23:10 37:24 38:1 80:2 81:5,17 standards 17:24 standing 14:21 15:1,8,22 30:13 41:25 Stanley 76:25 start 12:9.12 46:2 55:20 72:24 75:11 77:18 78:22 started 20:3 40:3 41:3 78:5

DBOPC 09/14/2023 starting 44:15 77:17 state 6:21 8:11,22 15:24 25:16 34:14 55:7,11,12 74:10 stated 13:23 23:4 25:22 29:23 31:18 40:22 station 59:17 60:10 statistics 35:22 36:1 48:21 50:20 status 70:9 stayed 34:9 staying 23:20 steady 66:11 stealing 12:3 step 78:6,17,21,24 79:1 Stephanie 78:14 stepping 35:20 steps 16:5 Stewart 6:20 26:5,6,22 27:13 28:2,20 29:14 30:4,20 31:14 32:7,24 33:23 34:2,17 35:9,25 37:9,18 38:1,7,14,18,24 41:9 58:16,17 stop 4:1 28:11 29:11 stopped 19:7 66:8 Stoppers 30:3,19 32:2 stopping 65:18 stories 32:8 stranger 45:16 74:25 strategy 44:12 street 14:15 27:8 30:15 31:16 34:8 51:9 57:13,25 59:15,18 60:20 64:7 74:2 streets 63:20 strong 8:3 stronger 7:21 struck 15:19 student 50:18

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

**Studies** 8:12 study 17:9,18 stuff 37:8 submit 79:16 submitted 3:4,7 15:25 29:6 78:15 79:21 success 9:8 successful 8:22 28:24 31:20 suffered 31:12 suggest 25:23 suicide 27:11,19 **summary** 31:15 Sunday 29:15 30:4,25 supervising 6:13 78:5,7,11 **supervisor** 3:19 14:18 15:1,2, 4,8,9,10,12,15,22,23 **support** 9:7 55:2,12 59:22 78:4 supporting 7:20 14:12 78:10 supportive 25:10,11 supposed 20:14 24:5 47:1 61:17 surprised 50:5,19 surrounded 59:10 survive 38:6 suspect 16:10 28:21,24 29:7, 8,10 31:18 37:14,15,16 38:5 suspects 31:21 sustain 26:18 system 18:1,5 81:7 systems 17:11

### Т

tab 76:23 table 11:3 63:17,19,25 tables 72:1,11 takes 23:21 46:22 taking 21:16 35:6,17 talk 21:1 59:3 66:16 talked 20:12 talking 23:16 24:3,17 38:2,3 74:2 Tanya 41:20 targeting 44:25 task 29:3,4 55:4 66:9 78:25 taught 50:13 Taylor 11:1,14,17,20,22 58:9 69:14 78:20 teach 73:22 75:10,18 team 12:9 13:15 41:22.24 47:18,22 58:5 70:21,24 tearing 62:7 telling 50:19 59:18,25 66:20 69:3,21 70:22 tells 25:5 35:22 temporary 29:19 30:11 tension 55:17,21 tentative 78:21 terms 20:8,20,25 21:23 22:11, 12,13,15 35:17 38:11,18 39:10,13,24 40:6,21 74:20 testified 70:17 thankful 33:18 50:3 theft 43:19,21 thefts 43:16 **Theresa** 6:11 54:11 57:1 59:5 70:25 Theresa's 59:24 the-you 11:8 thing 51:7 63:15 65:24

things 2:17,18 7:3 25:6 35:5,7 53:5 62:16 65:16 66:1,2 73:9

09/14/2023 Thompson 6:15 thought 37:10 73:21 thousand 27:20 threat 27:12,20 thrive 10:16 throwing 58:2 Thursday 45:25 62:23 63:2 82:8,10 ticket 62:2,3,5,20 ticketed 70:4 tickets 45:2 65:19.23 70:2 tie 44:22 Tiffany 6:19 26:5 time 2:21 7:4,17 10:24 15:16 17:8 32:5 34:22 43:7 48:1 49:13 50:24 52:22 57:5 61:9 62:8 63:4 66:12 73:21 74:16 78:12 82:5,22 83:7 Timmons 2:7,9 tips 30:22 titled 77:15 today 6:10,19 25:6 26:6 44:4 47:7 77:5,11 82:22 84:12 **Todd** 32:15 token 11:19 told 15:2.9 39:11 54:5 tomorrow 82:23 tonight 3:20 13:8 18:18,23 41:19 45:8 tool 70:19 tools 55:14 top 12:10,12 28:25 73:14 topics 81:7 torso 31:7 **Tosqui** 33:2 total 15:15 26:15 43:19,21

55:18

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

DBOPC

totally 25:1 touching 12:6 towing 40:7,9,17,18 81:22 82:1 **Town** 50:2 tows 45:2 traffic 14:16 27:3 28:11 29:11 trafficking 8:17 76:16 tragic 16:16 trained 38:10,21 training 28:3 38:17 80:17 transcription 79:4,11,24 transferred 18:6,8 transition 32:22 translate 48:2 transparency 79:3 transparent 16:19 transported 15:13 trauma 45:17 traveling 28:9 treated 29:18 39:16 truck 29:24 trust 9:9 11:25 34:4 Tuesday 33:9 45:19,20 46:3 73:25 tune 27:5 turn 7:10 turned 31:17 59:24 tv 30:21 **type** 35:17 40:24 typically 34:17 37:18,22 Tyree 52:5 **Tyrone** 6:21 59:25

U understaffed 63:21 understand 59:11,22 74:8 understanding 14:10 62:5 undertaking 17:3 Underwood 6:11 unfettered 25:3.25 unfinished 83:8 84:11 **uniform** 12:25 unit 29:2,3,4 35:13 40:13 **United** 40:25 units 81:5 **unity** 2:15 University 8:11 unknown 15:20 **UNNAMED** 72:23 **unpaid** 79:16 unresolved 54:23 unsure 20:13 unwillingness 54:24 upcoming 45:18 77:6 update 16:23 18:6 77:10,11 79:3 updated 26:7 30:7 updates 77:4 78:2 79:1 80:4 81:17 **Urban** 8:11 usage 45:16 utilize 22:21

### v

vacation 20:11 Valerie 3:16,18 57:4 validation 64:16

DBOPC 09/14/2023 valuable 23:17,21 variety 12:23 vast 52:14 vehicle 14:19,21,25 15:7,22 28:9,10,12,13,15 43:15,16,18, 21 vehicles 27:2,3 verbally 14:11 verify 50:24 Vernor 77:6 veteran 55:25 vibrance 12:18 vibrant 7:16 10:16 vice 67:18 Vice-chair 2:25 21:12 22:18 33:23 36:10 80:18 Vice-chairperson 21:14 victim 29:18 30:9 31:2.5.8 68:16 72:1 victim's 31:19 45:9 victims 30:24 31:19 45:11 video 6:18 14:9 29:23 31:24 videos 52:5.7 viewed 14:24 15:6 viewpoint 25:12 violate 75:10 violations 16:4 violators 35:13 violence 45:10 54:22 70:19 violent 26:16 27:15,21 42:2 virtually 54:21 visit 57:7 visitor 57:17 visual 14:7 16:12 vital 8:19 9:9 10:11

voice 13:23 52:3 volume 10:4 volumes 17:13,15

#### W

waiting 77:6 78:18 80:24 waiver 81:24 wake 57:18 walk 33:4 59:19 72:8,9,12 walked 31:8 wanted 11:17 48:5 67:20,22 68:15 69:22 72:19 76:1 Warfield 6:10 16:23,24 17:18 18:9 19:10 20:10 warning 15:25 warrant 16:9 31:21 warrants 29:7 Washington 57:16 water 52:13 Waterman 50:11 Wayne 8:11 15:25 16:2,8 29:7 31:22 32:18 59:21 ways 66:10 WDIV's 32:13 weapon 29:12 weapons 27:1 44:24 wear 12:24 week 4:20 7:1 18:18 20:20 23:16 32:8 34:6,7 42:6,7,19, 20 43:3,4,10 52:3 57:15 62:1 64:25 72:10 82:21 83:18 week's 20:12 83:9,20,24 84:7, 8,21 85:4 weekly 45:3 weeks 18:7 42:15 43:10 44:20 82:19



Wendell 54:11 58:24 Werner 8:15 14:4 West 8:15 28:8 74:1 westbound 30:14 Western 8:1 50:6,8 whatsoever 51:10 whip 69:21 Whippets 8:24 white 14:14 26:6 32:14 53:4 57:23 59:20 72:8 widespread 54:23 **Wigart** 6:15 William 6:23 65:10 **Willie** 3:3.4 wind 25:14 wipe 48:8 wisdom 64:6 witnesses 31:18,25 woman 48:22 women 49:3 73:16 won 71:13 wonderful 48:3 50:9,18,19 Woodmere 8:9 word 3:16 72:15 73:13 words 48:22 work 7:6,9 9:3 10:4,9 13:1,12 18:16 21:7,9,16,20 31:22 35:12 47:10,21 48:5 51:12 62:1,6 63:11 68:11,24 69:10, 11,18,19 70:9,14 72:5 76:4,7, 11 81:10 worked 9:3 10:6 worker 45:7,11 71:5 working 19:18 44:25 72:20 81:3,12 workload 19:17

09/14/2023 works 45:10 72:21 wound 29:18 30:9 wounds 31:4,6,12 **wow** 73:21 wrap 29:23 write 73:18 writing 32:5 65:19 70:23 wrong 25:18 wrote 74:14 Υ Yakata 6:14 yard 31:3 yards 82:1 year 26:18,20,23 27:16,18 31:11 42:13 43:7 52:8 77:17 79:15,17,18 80:12 year-old 29:15 years 7:19 10:1 32:10 33:11, 16 39:18,21 40:12,16,25 48:6 60:20 65:20 66:2 **yellow** 53:4 young 8:20 39:23,25 50:5,17 66:16 your- 46:9 Ζ **Zoom** 2:8 6:15

# ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com 313.567.8100